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ABO UT THE CO VER 

Pum ping Station No. 1, the city's ok~est drainage pum ping sta- 
tion, is undergoipg major expansion and renovation. ]'he $11 mil- 
lion project includes the addition of two new drainage pumps and 
the enlargem ent of the discharge basin. The station was recently 
renam ed in honor of the S&W B engineer w ho designed the world- 
fam ous W ood Screw Pum p-- A. Baldwin W ood. Several other 

major drainage improvement projects are underway as pad of 
the Southeast Louisiana Urban Flood Control Program (SELA), a 
joint effort between the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the 
Sewerage and W ater Board. Some $440 million for new canals 
and pum ping stations and other renovations in every part of the 
city is projected under SELA, which calls for 75 per cent Federal 
funding ,and 25 per cent local match by the S&W B. 

Photo by Joe Bergeron, C.F. W eber Photography 
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M ISSIO N STATEM ENT 

To be one of the best and m ost respected suppliers of sew er, w ater, and drainage 
services in the south-central United States by providing quality, reliable, and cost 
effective services to our Custom ers w hile m aintaining fair and ethical treatm ent of our 
w ell-trained and highly m otivated em ployees. 

O UR VA LUES 

Open, honest com m unication 

Trust and respect for each other 

Offering and encouraging education and opportunity to em ployees 

Fostering enthusiasm  am ong em ployees through exam ple of the 
m anagers/supervisors 

Providing direction and planning and encouraging 
interdepartm ental team  w ork 

A ssuring reliability in providing services to custom ers 

KEY RESULT A REA S 

Cost Effectiveness 

Em ployee Satisfaction 

Capabilities Im provem ent through Training 
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Groundbreaking ceremonies marked the start of construction for the $19 millien Napoleon 
Avenue Drainage Canal Improvement Project. Two new canals will be built beneath Napoleon 
through the Southeast Louisiana Urban Flood Control Program (SELA), a cooperative effort 
between the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the Sewerage and W ater Board of New 
O rleans. 

W ork is underway to install two new concrete box drainage canals beneath Napoleon Avenue 
from Fontainebleau Drive to South Claiborne Avenue. The canals, large enough to carry two 
transit buses side by side, are part of a massive rebuilding of the drainage system citywide. 
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ter B oard OF NEW ORLEANS 

April 24, 2000 

TO : THE HONORABLE PRESIDENT AND M EM BERS OF THE SEW ERAGE AND W ATER 
BOARD OF NFW  O RLEANS 

W e ar e pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Repo rt of the Sewerage and W ater 
Board of New Orleans for the year ended  December 31, 1999. Responsibility for bo th th e accuracy of the 
data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rest solely with the 
Sewerage and W ater Board. It is our belief that the data, as presented , is accurate in all material aspects 
and is presented in a m ann er designed to fairly set forth the financial position, results of operations, an d 
cash flows of the Board's Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the 
reader to gain an understanding of th e Sewerage and W ater Board's financial activities have been included. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Repo rt is presented in four (4) ma jor sections : Introductory, 
Financial, Statistical and Supplemental. The Introductory Section includes the tran smittal letter an d listings 
of the officers, members and comm ittees of th e Boar d of Direc tors. This sec tion also in cludes the Board's 
organ izational chart an d a reproduction of the 1998 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting awarded by the Governm ent Finan ce  Office rs Association. The Financial Section includes th e 
independent auditors' repro 1, along w ith the general purp ose financial staternents an d the acc om panying 
notes. The combined and individual fund statements for th e Enterp rise an d Pension Trust Funds are 
included. Required supplementary information is also included. Th e Statistical Sec tion includes selected 
finan cial and demographic information, generally in a multi-year presentation. Additional information 
relative to the Sewerage and W ater Board's ope rations  is included in a Supplem ental Section. 

The Sewerage an d W ater Board mee ts the criteria for classification as an  "other stand-alone 
govern ment" as described in Governm ental Accountin g Standar ds Boar d Statement No. 14. The reporting 
entity include.'; th e Enterp rise Fund an d th e Pension Tru st Fund. The Enterp rise Fund is composed of three 
(3) independent systems: W ater, Sewerage and Draina ge. 

Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orlean s is a political subdivision created  in 1899 by Louisian a 
State Statute,,;. "lane Board is char ged  with constru ction, ope ration, an d ma intenance of W ater, Sewerage 
and Drainage System s for th e City of New Orleans. By agree ment, approxim ately 2,550 acres of 
adjourning Jefferson Parish is served by the Board's drainage facilities for which Jefferson Parish pays its 
pro rata share of expenses. In addition, the Board provides sewerage services to Jefferson Par ish 

businesses the majority of which are restaurants located in the W est End neighborhood near the Lakefront. 
Additionally, th e Board provides water an d sewerage services to the Plaquenfines Parish industrial Park. 
The Sewerage and W ater Boar d was established  as a "special boar d" operating in dependently of city 
govern m ent. The M ayor of New Orlean s serves as th e President of th e Board of D irectors which is 

composed of three (3) representatives of the City Coun cil, two (2) representatives of the Board of 
Liquidation, City Debt an d seven (7) appointees as designated by the State statutes. 

Members o/ the Board 7~tOMAS B COLEMAN * HENRY A DILL ON, JR ~ BENJAMIN L, EDWARDS. SR ~ RONALO C GUIORY, SR ~ CAROL YN J HARRIS 
BARBARA L,~MON7 , MARC' ~' M ORtAl * EODIE L SAPIR ~ JAMES M SINGLETON ~ OL/VER M THOMAS STAFFORD R TUREAUD, SR. ~ MARY K, ZERV/GON 

"An ~qua/Oppo~untty ~m p/oye~" 



ECO NO M IC CO ND ITIO N AND O UTLO O K 

The Board's service  area includes the Civil Parish of Orleans in the state of Louisiana and covers 364 

square miles. Based on the 1990 census, the population of Orleans Parish was 498,938. Major industries 
include tourism , oil and gas, transportation, health and other services, such as legal, education and 

entertainm en t. 

A ccording to the Jan uary 2000 issue of the _M etropoli
_ _
tan

_  Report: Eepnqmic !n_djcBtors for theNew 
Or leansArea (UNO Report), published by the Division of Bus iness and Eco nomic Research, University of 
New Or leans, the New Orleans economy gen erated fewer job losses in the third qoarter 1999 than in the 
second quarter. "Ihe third quarter improvem ent is certainly attributable to ren ewed em ploym en t growth in the 
service sector, a traditional m ainstay of th e local econom y. Energy price s co ntinued to increase over th e third 
quarter, by 19.5% for crude oil and by 12.1% for natural gas, an d the rig co unt, an  important m eas ure of th e 
sector's health, went up. 

The oil and gas sector sent m ixed signals in the second quarter. Th e results were som ewhat better in 
the third quartet. After a low of 130 in April 1999, the rig co un t rose to 136 in the third quarter. This 
increase is m ore consisten t with the curren t hike in oil prices which ren ders exploration m ore profitable. Th e 
curren t upswing in prices is a direct result of OPEC's m oves to volun tary lim it production in order to 
m aintain prices. The fact that OPEC co un tries ar e co m plying with these production cutbacks is unusual 

continues the UNO Rep ort. Two major en ergy company mergers have been annotmced in 1999--British 
Petroleum /Am oco an d Exxon/M obil. 

Th e tourism industry is still the bright spot of the local econom y. Through the third quarter of 1999, 
alm ost all m ca sm es of tourism activity wer e up over the previous  year . Convention bookings were up 9.1%  
compared to the first three qtmrters of 1998. The Louisian a Office of Tourism estim ates a record num ber of 
visitors to the New Orleaus area in 1999. W ith the opening of Harrah's Casino and th e downtown ar en a, th e 
N ew Orlean s area offers even m ore to attract tourists. Th e open ing of the Jazzland th em e park in th e spring 
of 2000 will also boost tourism activity. As a result of these new attractions, hotel/m otel sales will continue 
to set records, an d reach almost $200 million per quarter by the end of 2001. 

The collective "other services" sector, which includes, am ong others, consulting, legal, education, 
entertainm ent, and rep air services, has been  the m ainstay of em ploym en t gr owth over th e past several year s, 
the largest increase of all sectors . The only oth er positive gr owth among services sector in the th ird quarter 
was in education. The outlook for th e New Or lean s area serv ice s sector is bright. Th e food store sector in 

the New Orleans metropolitan area is un dergoing major adjustments as chains vie for market position. 

Construction did well in comparison to other sectors in th e third quarter of 1999. Em ploym ent was  

up by 292 jobs. Man y of these workers have contributed to finishing the expan sion of the Convention Cen ter 
in the Spring of 1999, the first floor of the Harrah's Cas ino in th e fall as well as the downtown aren a, with 
Jazzlan d and the second floor of the cas ino still to be completed. 

State and local government, a source of substantial job growth of late, lost 840 jobs in the third 
quarter of 1999. Still, the average num ber of state an d local governm en t em ployees over the Jan uary- 
September period was  higher by 1,157 in 1999 th an  in 1998 in th e N ew Or lean s m etropolitan  area. 

The N ew Orlean s ar ea is still experien cing net out-m igration. Total an d per capita personal incom e 
nereased considerably in the New Orlean s area over the pas t year . 
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M AJOR INITIATIVES 

For the year: The Board budgeted approximately $92 million for capital improvements in 1999 
Highlights of this program included: 

W ater 

Sewerage 

D rainage 

A contract for th e design of the Filter Im provem ents and the G& L Basin 
Improvemen ts at the Carrollton W ater Plan t was awarded. These im provem en ts will 
keep the plan t com plian t with proposed drinking water standards. Construction costs 

are estimated to be $6 m illion. 

W ork continues on the $455 m illion city-wide sewer rehabilitation progr am . In the 
Lakeview area, tw o contracts were co mpleted and three were irdtiated. The total value 
of work completed or started in the Lakeview area exceeded $7 million. Four 
remaining contracts, valued at $11.6 m illion, will be advertised in 2000. Engineering 
design for the Cen tral Business District/Fren ch Quarter area was substan tially 
completed in 1999 with the first co nstruction projects sched uled for advertisemen t in 
2000. Th e Uptown area Collection System Evaluation Survey progressed  in 1999 an d 
will be co m pleted in th e first quarto' of 2000. 

Th e Drainage Pum ping Station #1 final phas e of co nstruction is over 50% complete. 

Several of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Control Projects, 75% funded by the Corps 
of Engineers, were bid in 1999 or early 2000. Th ese projec.ts are: The Napoleon 
Avenue Can al lm provem ea',, ',he Cl, aib~ru e Aveaue C~ [ from L~ui~;.~a~a A.ve~ue to 
Jena an d from Jena to Nashville, the Dwyer Road Pu mping Station, the Dwyer Road 
Pum ping Station Discharge Tubes. Th e Hollygr ove )hnnping Station and Can al 
System are expected  to bid in 2000. 

In addition $4.5 m illion is sched uled for water an d sewer main rep lacem en t in the 

City of New Orlean s, Department of Public Works paving projects. 

In August of 1999, the Board received approval for th e fourth in an  an ticipated series of grants from 
the Environmental Protection Agen cy (EPA) for planning, design , co nstruction, mad rehabilitation of the 
san itary sewer system. Th is grant award was $6.52 million for a five- (5) year period, an d must be matched 
by approximately $5.34 million in Board ftmds. The primary goal of the effort is to protect public health by 
reducing an d eliminating (1) structural failures of gravity sewer mains an d sewer forc~e mains (2) mechan ical 
failures of sewage pumping station an d (3) high rates of infiltration an d inflow. 

Th e five (5) year capital program  budget of $896,146,000 was approved by the Sewerage an d W ater 
Board in Decen~ber 1999. The approved amount for Drainage projects was $546,458,000, of that amount 
$297,053,000 is participation by others. Th e U.S. Corp s of Engineers South east Louisian a Flood Control 
Program will fund over 90% of the cost of participation by others. 

FINANCIA L INFORM ATION 

M anagem en t of the Sewer age an d W ater Board is responsible for designing and m ainta ining intern al 
control sufficien t to safeguard the Board's as sets against loss, th eft or m isuse and to ensur e the reliability of 
financial records for prep aring finan cial statem en ts in conform ity with gener ally accepted accounting 
principles. The intern al control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assur an ce that these goals 
are met. The co ncept of reasonable assuran ce recognizes that: (1) the cost of internal controls should not 
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exceed the be~refits expected to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits required the exercise of 
judgement by managemen t. 

The Enterp rise Fund's W ater an d Sewerage System are finan ced by user fees. The unique 
characteristics of the services provided by the Drainage System of N ew Orlean s requires the use of Enterprise 
Fund ace ountini, in order to obtain a m eaningful m easure of the cost of providing the serv ices an d capital 

maintenance. Revenues from the three- (3) mill, six- (6) mill an d nine- (9) mill ad v~dorern taxes, which are 
restricted exclusively for drainage services, finan ce the Drainage System . These ad valur em taxes provide the 

major operating revenues of the drainage system. 

Budgetary Control: The Sewerage an d W ater Board m aintains an  internal budgetary control 
through the preparation an d m onitoring of an  an nual operating and capital budget for the W ater, Sewerage, 
and Drainage funds. M onthly budget reports are provided to departm ent level m anagers to assist them in 
their fiscal responsibilities. 

G eneral O perations: There was a m odest increas e in operating revenues from 1998 to 1999 
(1.3% increase) primarily due to an increase in sewer and water services an d collection of property tax es. 
Th e water and sewer rate structure was un chan ged dur ing 1999. Operating expenses increas ed by 2.1% 
prim arily due to an  increase in the provision for self-insuran ce claim s and an increase in transm ission an d 
distribution expenses. 

Pension Trust Fund O perations: The contributions to the Pen sion Trust Funds are based on an nual 
actuarial valuations. The Sewerage an d W ater Board co ntinues to fund the paydow~ of the total unfun ded 
liability over a remaining period of five (5) years. 

Debt Adm inistration: Th e Board of Liquidation, City Debt has responsibility for the adm inistration 
of the Board's debt. Drainage debt services paym en ts ar e supported by ad valorem tax collections, while user 
fees are used to provide debt serv ices for the W ater an d Sewerage System bonds. Th e Sewerage an d W ater 
Board's bonds outstanding as of December 31, 1999 totaled $86,120,000. 

Cash lVlanagem ent: Cas h tem porarily idle in the Enterprise Fun d during the year was invested in 
com m ercial bank certificates of deposit, rep ur chase agreem en ts, an d U . S. Treas tu-y Bills. Effective Jan uary 
1998, investm ents were recorded at fair value. Investm en t incom e on these idle funds was $8,123,833. 

Risk M anagem ent: Th e Sewerage an d W ater Board uses both insur ed  and retained risk program s 
to m anage exposm es to loss. Th e Board a&ninisters self-insur ed progr am s for property an d autom obile 
liability exposures. Also, retained risk program s for general liability an d worker's' compensation losses an d 
claim s are adm inistered by the Board. Improved claim s m an agem en t an d adm inistration have facilitated 
m ore tim ely and belier decision m aking on a case-by-case basis. The updating of risk m an agem ent 

procedures and information systems is ongoing with the objective of improving loss control efforts and risk 
assessm ent capabilities. 

O ther Inform ation: State Statutes an d co ven an ts governing outstan ding bond issues require an  
annual audit o[" the Board's financial records by indepen den t certified public accountants. Th e accounting 
firm s of KPM G LLP and Bruno an d Terv alon were selected by the Board to perform this audit. The 
independent auditors' report on the general-purpose finan cial statem ents is included in the Financial Section 
of the report. 
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The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Can ada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievem en l for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Sewerage and W ater Board of New 
Orleans for its Comprehensive Annual Finan cial Report for the fiscal year ended I)ecernber 31, 1998. Th e 
Certificate of Achievem ent is a prestigious national awar d-recognizing conform ance with the highest 
standards for prep aration of state an d local govern m en t financial rep orts. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficien tly organ ized com prehensive annual finan cial rep ort whose conten ts co nform to program 
stan dards. Such CAFR m ust satisfy both gen erally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 

requirem ents 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one (1) year only. The Sewerage and Water 
Board of New, Orlean s has received a Certificate of Achievemen t for the last seventeen (17) consecutive 
years. W e believe our curren t report continues to conform to the Certification of Achievem ent Progr am 
requirem ents and we are subm itting it to GFOA. 

Acknowledgm ents: The Comprehensive Annual Finan cial Report was prepared  by the dedicated 
staff of the Board's M an agem ent Services A dm inistration, particularly the A ccounting an d Printing 

D epartm ents. ' 

W e also wish to thank the m embers of the Board for their interest and support in our efforts to 

Executive D irectoJ 

d acc ountability 
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9.29%  2.12%  
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The Sewerage and W ater Board's Custom er Service Phone Center handles hundreds of trans- 
actions a week, assisting customers with service and billing m atters and questions. Full serv ices 
are also available in person at a m ain Service Center at the Board's headquarters building and a! 
three Entergy Custem er Care Centers in Carrollton, eastern New O rleans and Algiers. 

The Board's Cornm urlity and Intergovernm ental Relations Departm ent participates in nun'lerous 
civic, neighborhood, environm ental and governm ental m eetings, exhibits and educational 
program s. Inform atior~ on wastewater, water quality, drainage and the environm ent are featured 
at events like Em thtest at the Audubon Zoo. 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Odeans, L/k 70t39-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report 

M em bers of the Board 
Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleaus 

B ru no 

~ ' l"~,rv~ on 

W e have audited the accompanying general purp ose financial statements of the Sewerage and W ater Board of 
New Orleans as of and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, as listed in the table of contents. 
These genera~l purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's m anagement. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the C'omptroller General of the 
United States Those standards require that we plan and perform  the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the general purpose financial statem ents are free of m aterial misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the am ounts and disclosures in the general purp ose financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estim ates m ade 
by m anagem ent, as well as evaluating the overall general purp ose financial statem ent presentation. W e 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

]n our opinion, the general purp ose financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial 
respects, the financial position of the Board as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its 
operations and cash flows of its enterp rise fund and the changes in plan net assets of its pension trust fund for 
the years then ended in conform ity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance v,,ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 21, 2000, on 
our consideration of the Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in ~Lccoidance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this 
report in consi,:lering the results of our audit. 

The schedules of funding progress and employer contributions of the Required Supplementary Information, 
as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of the general purp ose financial statem ents, but are 
supplem entary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit 
and do not express an opinion on such inform ation. W e have applied to the schedules of fimding progress 
and employer contributions certain limited procedures prescribed by professional standards, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of m easurement and presentation of the 
schedules. 

Our audits were made for the purp ose of forming an opinion on the general purp ose financial statements of 
the Board taken as a whole. The Supplem entary Inform ation included in Schedules 1 through 4 as listed in 
the table of COtltents is presented for purp oses of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general 
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purpose financial statements of the Board. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all 
m aterial rcspects, in relation to the general purpose financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

The Statistical Information and Supplemental Inform ation sections as listed in the table of contents are also 
presented for purp oses of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purp ose financial 
statements of tile Board. Such additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the general purp ose financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
it. 

April 21, 2000 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEAN S 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AN D EXPENSES AND CHANG]~~ IN 
RETAINED EARNINOS - NET REVENUE REINVESTED 

Operating rev~:nues; 
Sales of water and delinquent fees 
SewCl~ge ~ervice ch~,xge.s 
Three-mill tax 
Six-mill tax 
Nineqrfil] tax 
Plumbing inspection and license fees 

Tx'3tal ieventles 

Operating Expe nses: 
power and pumf,mg 
Treatm ent 
Transmission and distribution 
Custom er accounL~ 
Cu~tom el sel'vicc 
Administration and general 
Payroll related 
M alntet~aace of generM plartt 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Pr ovisie, n for ~lahns 

Total operating expenses 

Net oper~tting levenue 

Non-operating levenues (expense) 
Two-mi~ tax 
]nvcstrt~emt raceme 
Other revenue 
Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues 

Net revenue ~einvested 

]~'2q'I'ERPR1SE lnJND 

For the years ended December 31, 1999 ~nd 1998 

R~ ,med eP2rning~, net revenue rt~invested: 
Beginning of yqmr 

End of yea~ 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 
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$ 54,744,180 
39.$15,142 
9,327,297 
9.418,063 
14,111,663 
279.166 

127,695,515 

16,424,595 
12,743,738 
19,901,993 
2,765,490 
2,682,278 
12,118,448 
14,292.116 
9,123,305 
27,533.457 

95,477 
1,002,267 
7.165.152 

125.848,306 

1 ,g47.209 

11,811 
8,123,833 
1,975,775 

(4,654,904) 

5.456.515 

7.303.724 

54,249.522 
39,391,39~, 
9,100,244 
9,214,065 
] 3,805,848 
244.110 

126.005,187 

16,996,026 
I 1,729,999 
16,607,254 
2,654,955 
2,740,765 
12,806,467 
15,030,622 
9,g40,g97 
26,631,640 
217.221 
837,177 

7.199,793 

123,282,816 

2.722,371 

20,017 
5,877,860 
2,7O9,878 
(2,858,224) 

5349,531 

8.471.902 

757,440,535 748,968,633 

$ 764,744,259 $ 757.44.0.535 



SEW ERAGE AND W A FE R BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

STATEM ENrPS OF CASH FLOW 'S 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

For the years ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Properly laxes received 
Cash paym ents to suppliers for 
goods an d services 
Cash pa3nnents to employee.s for services 
Other revenue 

Net cash provided  by operating activities 

Cash flows fiom noncapital financing 
activities - proceeds from property taxes 

Cash flows from capital and related 
financing activiti~~s: 
Acquisition and construction of capital as sets 
Proceeds of bond issue 
Bond issuance costs 
Principal paym ents on bonds payable 
Interest paid on bonds payable 
Capit',d contributed by developers and 
fed er al 8:rant s 

1999 

9235%850 
32,838,175 

(46,679,059) 
(48,915,460) 
1.975.775 

(47,285,329) 

(4,605,000) 
(4,690,227) 

8.334.925 

1998 

92,417,055 
32,232,025 

(45,724,854) 
(48,537,565) 
2,709,878 

33,096,539 

20.017 

(47.584,232) 
51,000,000 
(346,643) 

(7,055.000) 
(2,689,313) 

4.654.756 

Net cash used for capital and related  financing 
activities (48,245,631) (2,020,432) 

Cash flows from inves ting activities: 
Payments for purchase of investm ents 
Proceeds flora m aturities of investm ents 
Investments incom e 

Net cash provided  by (used in) 
investing activities 

NeA increas e ill Cas h 

Cash at the beginning of the year 

Cash at the end of the year 

Rec onciliation ol cash and restricted cash (note 2) 
Current asse.ts * cash 
Restricled  ~.ssets -cash 
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(292,704,000) 
302,721,409 
8,028.155 

(356,898,704) 
318,904,712 
7.242,950 

18,045,564 (30,751,042) 

1,789,025 345,082 

1,404,862 1.059,780 

$ 3,193,887 $ 1,404,862 

2,954,260 
239,627 

1,142,082 
262,780 

$ 3.193.887 $ 1.404.862 

(Con~nued) 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

For the years ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 

Reconciliation of nel operating revenue to net cash 
provided by operating activities is as follows: 
Net op~'ating revenue 
Add: O~en revenue 

Adjustnlents to reconcile net opezating revenue 
to net cash Irrovided by operating activities: 
1)eprectation 
Provision lol claim s 
PJovision Io, doubtful accounts 
Am ortization 
lncreasc in custom er and other receivable 
(lncrea,~;e) decrease in taxes receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increase in accounts payable 
Increas e in act pension as set 
Decrease in accrued s'daries and accrued 
vacation and sick pay 

Decrea!;e in other liabilities 

1999 

1,$32,326 
1,975,775 

1998 

$ 2,722,371 
2,709,878 

3.808,101 5.432.249 

27,533,459 
7,165,152 
1,002,267 
95,477 

(2,200.614) 
(18,852) 
215,202 
(395,728) 
354,958 

(1,741,723) 

(244,869) 
(3.595,549) 

Net cash provided by operating activiti~ 31,977,281 

,~1~ accorrlparlylng notes to financial statem ents. 
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26,631.640 
7,199,793 
837,177 
217,221 

(1,346,470) 
111,868 
(425,442) 
180,101 
38,542 

(538,802) 

(220,940) 
- ~ --  

(5,_020,398) 

$ 33,096.539 



Additions: 
Contributkms 

SE'9,~,RAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

STA TEM ENTS OF' CHA N GES IN PLAN NET ASSETS 

PENSION TRUST FUND 

For the years ended I~c..embex 31, 1999 and 1998 

Employee contributions 
Employer contributions 
City annuity aJld other transfers in 

Tola] contributions 

Investm ent in com e: 
lnlerest incom e 
Dividend incom e 
Net appreciation 

Less investm ent expense 

N et investm ent incom e 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Benefits 
Employee refuncls 
Employee contributions to DROP 
Interest on DROI' inveslm ents 
Death  benefits 

Total deductions 

Net ir~crease in plan assets 

Plan net assets at beginning of year 

Plan net assets at end of year 

See accompani~ng notes to financial statements. 

1999 

1,028,094 
4,930,117 
221.272 

6.179.483 

4,496,252 
1,405,216 
10,215,581 

16,117,049 

-  Q46,861) 

(5,462,519) 
(352,227) 

(1,082,804) 
(23,301) 

-  (8,148) 

1998 

1,138,063 
5,402,100 

46,723 

6,586,886 

4,191.310 
1,267,960 
7,858,701 

13,317,971 

~i~7,215) 

13.190.756 

19,777,642 

(5,592,168) 
(316,906) 
(637,492) 
(22,461) 
_ (4,964) 

15,220,672 13,203,651 

156,613,497 1143,409,846 

$ 171.834,169 

11-9 

$ 156.613,497 



 



N O T ES TO G EN ERA L PU RPO SE 

FIN A N C IA L STA T EM ENTS 



SEW ERAG E AN[) W ATI~R BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

(]) Summary, of Si~nificanl Accoan tine Policie 

H i~!pry_ and Organization 

The major operation of the Sewerage an d W ater Board of New Orlvans (the Board) is providing 
water, sewerage and drainage services for the City of New Orlean s (City). 

The Sewerage an d W ater Board of New Orlean s was created by Act 6 of the Louisiana Legislature of 
1899 as a special board independent of the City's government to constru ct, maintain an d operate a 
water treatment an d distribution system and a public sanitary sewerage system for the City. In 1903, 

the l..egislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's major drainage system and 
relieved th e City of the duty of providing in its annual ope rating budget or otherwise for the 
maintenan ce an d operations of the water, sewerage an d drainage system s. 

In accoldance with the Louisiana Revised  Statutes (LRS) 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the 
authority to establish the water and sewerage ra tes to charge to its customers. The rates are based on 
the actual water consum ed an d on the costs of m aintenan ce an d ope ration of the water an d sewerage 
systems, including the costs of improvements and replacements. The collections of water and 
sewerage rates are to be used by the Board for the maintenan ce and operation of the systems, the cost 
of improvements, betterments, an d replacements, an d to provide for the payments of interest and 

principal on the bonds payable, The Board has also been given the authority to levy an d collect 
various tax rnillages which ar e used for the operation and maintenan ce of the drainage operations. 
All excess revenues collected ar e made available for capital developme nt of the system . The 
proceeds of the rate collections an d tax millages are invested in such investments as authorized by 
the LRS. These investm ents are reflected in the com bined balance sheet, as "restricted assets," as 
they are restricted to the purposes as described above. 

']'he Board is composed of thirteen me mbe rs, including the M ayor of the City, the two Council 
members-at-Large, and one District Council me mbe r selected by the City Council, two me mbers of 
the Board of Liquidation an d seven citizens appointed by the M ayor. The appointed membe rs of the 
Board serve staggered nine-year terms. 

The Board's accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting p~ lciples as applicable to 
utilities and to goveru mental units. The following is a summ ary of the m ore significant policies 

(A) .R_ei~rting Entity 

In conform ity with the Govern me ntal Accounting Stan dards Board's definition of a reporting entity, 
the Board includes an enterprise fund and a pe nsion trust fu nd for finan cial reporting purposes. The 
Board is considered a reporting entity bas ed on the following criteria: 

(a) Responsibility for surpluses/deficits. Th e Board is solely responsible for its 
surp luses/deficits. In accordan ce with Louisian a Revised Statutes, no other governmental 
unit is responsible for the Board's deficits or has a claim to its surp luses. Th e Board's 
operations are self-sustaining; revenues are generated  th rough char ges to customers and 
dedicated property taxes. Other than  gran ts, no fu nding is received from the State of 
l,ouisiana or the C ity of New Orleans. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTF_.S TO FINANCIAl, STATEM ENTS 
{Continued} 

Sunmlarv of Sian ificant Accounting Policies (Continued 

(b) Budget Approval. The Board is solely responsible for reviewing, approving and revising 
its budget. 

(c) Responsibility for Debt. Th e Louisiana Revised  Statutes authorize the Board to issue 
bonds; such bonds must bear on their face a statement that they do not constitute a debt of 
the City. Th e Board is solely responsible for paym ents to th e bondholders. No other 
governmental unit is required by statu te to m ake any paym ents to bondholders nor have 
any payments to bondholders ever been made by an y governmental unit, except the Board. 

(d) Designation of M an agement. The Board controls the hiring of management an d 
em ployees. 

(e) Special Financial Relationship. The Board has no special financial relationships with any 
other governme ntal unit. 

(f) Statutory Authority. The Board's statutory authority was created by the State of Louisian a 
as an  independent governmental unit. Only an  amendme nt to state statu tes can  chan ge or 
abolish the Board's authority. 

The Board is a stand-alone entity as defined  by GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity: 
The Board is a legally-separate governm enta l organ ization that does not have a separately elected 
governing body an d does not meet the definition of a component unit. As a re sult of a Louisiana 
Supreme Court decision on M arch 21, 1994, the Board was declared to be  an autonomous or self 
govern ing legal entity, legally independent of the city, state an d other governments, created and 
organized pursuan t to Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:40'71 as  a board, separate an d independent of 
the governing authorities of the City an d vested with autonomous or self governing authority. No 
other governm ent can  mandate actions of the Board nor impo se specific financial burdens. The 
Board is fiscally independent to operate under its bond covenan t an d the provisions of Louisiana 
Revised Statute provisions. 

(B) Basis of Presentation - Fund Ac.countin__ _g 

The operations of the Board are accounted for in the following fund types 

Pr o_ ~ p_~ e) a~y__Fund Type 

The proprietary fund is used to account for the Board's ongoing ope rations an ti activities which are 
similar to those often found in the private sector. The proprietary fund is accounted for using a flow 
of economic resources measurement focus. W ith th is me asureme nt focus, all as sets and all liabilities 
associated with the operation of these funds ar e included on the balan ce sheets. Fund equity is 
segregated into contributed capital an d retained ear nings. Th e ope rating statements present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total as sets. Th e Board maintains one proprietary fund 
type - the enterprise fund. The enterp rise fund is used to account for operations 
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SEW ERAG E AND W ATER BOARD O F NEW  O RLEANS 

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 
{Continued) 

Suvmnarv of Simaificant Accountinz Policies (Continued 

(a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises-where the 
intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be finan ced or recovered primarily through user 
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided  that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, an d/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance. The presentation of the 
financial statements of th e enterprise fund follows the format rec om mended  by th e National 
Association of Regulalory Utility Commissioners (NARUC). 

The balance sheet arrangement for a utility reflects the relative importauce of the various accounts. 
"Property, plant and equipment" is the first major category on the asset side, an d long-term 
capitalization categories such as fund equity are listed first on th e liability side. Current assets an d 
current liabilities are assigned  a relatively less intportant position in the center of the balan ce sheets, 
rather than being placed first as in the balance sheets of comm ercial and industrial enterprises. 

Fidu_cj_ary_F_un d Type 

The fiduciary fund is used  to account for assets held by the Board in a trustee capacity or as an  agent 
for individuals, private organ izations, other govern me ntal units an d/or other funds. The Board 
m aintains one fiduciary fund type - the pension trust fund. The me asureme nt focus of the pension 
trust fire d is the sam e as that of the enterp rise fund. Th e pension trust fund is used to account for the 
activi~.y of the Board's em ployee retirem ent plan. 

The Board applies all applicable FASB pronouncem ents issued on or before Novembe r 30, 1989 in 
accounting for its enterp rise fund an d pension trust fund ope rations unless those pronouncements 
conflict with or contradict GA SB pronouncements. 

(C) l:~asis of Accounting 

The enterprise fund and the pension trust fund prepare their finan cial statements on ttne accrual basis 
of accounting. Unbilled utility service charges ar e not recorded as m anageme nt considers the effect 
of not recording such unbilled receivables are not material . Prope rty taxes ar e recorded as revenue 
when collected by the Board's agent. Plan  member contributions ar e recognized in the period in 
which contlibutions axe due, Employer contributions to each plan  are recognized when due and the 
employel has made a commitme nt to provide the contributions. Benefits an d nffunds are recognized 
when due an d payable in accordance with the term s of the plan . 

(D) Investments 

Investments are repoz1ed at fair value, Short-term investments (maturity of one year or less) are 
reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded in a national or international 
exchange are valued at the last reported  sales price at current exchange rates. Investments that do not 
have an  established market are reported at estim ated fair value. 

I1-12 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATI~R BOARD OF NEW  ORLI~L~,NS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

( l ) su m.._m_a. 

(E) Invento r Supplies 

Inventory of supplies is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first- 
out m ethod. 

Prot>env. Plant an d EQuiomen 

Property, plant and equipment are car ried at historical cost. The cost of additions include contracted 
work, direct labor, materials and allocable cost. Donated  fixed assets are rex:orded at their estima ted 
fair value at the date of donation. Interest is capitalized on fixed as sets acquired and/or constructed 
with tax exempt debt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated  
useful life of the asset. W hen assets ar e retired or oth erwise disposed  of, the cost and related 
accmnulated depreciation are rem oved from the accounts and an y resulting gain or loss is recognized 
in revenue for the period. The cost of m aintenance an d repairs is charged  to operations as incurred 
and sign ificant renewals an d betterm ents are capitalized. A deduction is ma de for retirements 
resulting from renewals or betterm ents. Depreciation on assets acquired through contributions is 
charged to fund equity - revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system . 

(G) Vacation and Sick Pay 

Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned. Annual leave is accrued 
at the rate of .6923 of a workday for each bi-weekly accrual pe riod for all employees on the payroll 
as of December 31, 1978. Employees hire d after that date earn leave at a rate of .5 of a workday per 
bi-weekly pay period. 

All em ployees receive three bonus days each year for five through nine calendar years of continuous 
service; six bonus days each year for ten through fourteen year s; nine bonus days each year for 
fiftee1~ through nineteen year s; an d, twelve days for twenty or m ore year s of continuous service. 
Civil Service's policy perm its em ployees a lim ited  am ount of earned  but unused an nual leave which 
will be paid to employees upon separ ation from the Board. Th e am ount shall not exceed ninety days 
for employees hired before Jan uary 1, 1979, an d forty-five days for ernployees hired  after 
Decem ber 31. 1978. 

Sick leave is accumulated on a bi-weekly bas is by all employees hired prior to Decembe r 1, 1978 at 
an accrual rate of .923 of a workday. For employees hired  subsequent to Decembe r 31, 1978, the 
accru al rate is .5 of a workday for each bi-weekly period, plus a two day bonus each year for 
employees with six through fifteen calendar year s of continuous service, and seven bonus days each 
year for employees with sixteen or m ore calendar  years of continuous service. 

Upon separation from the Board, an em ployee can elect to convert unused sick leave for retirement 
credits or cash. The conversion to cash is determined by a rate ran ging from one day of pay for five 
days of leave for the 1 st through 100th leave day ~o one day of pay for one day of leave for all days in 
excess of the 400th leave day. The total liability for unconverted sick leave as of De cembe r 31, 1999 
and 1998 is approximately $13,677,000 an d $14,100,000 respectively. The amounts included in the 
balance sheets as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 is $10,298,496 and $10,610,110, respe ctively, 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

(1) Sun~nary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

which represents the convened sick leave since virtually all employees convert their sick leave to 
cash. "/'he amounts for compensated absences include the salary cost as well as certain salary related 
costs, such as the Board's share of social security expe nse. 

(H) Pension 

The Board funds the accru ed pe nsion cost for its contributory pe nsion plan which covers 
substantially all employees. Annual costs are actu arially computed using the entry age normal cost 
m ethod. 

(I) _D~ ystem 

In 1903, the Legislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's drainage system . 
The Drainage System was established  as a department of the enterp rise fund to account for the 
reve~ues from three-mill, six-mill and nine-mill ad valorem taxes design ated exclusively for drainage 
services. These revenues have been suppleme nted by inspection and license fees collected by the 
Board. "/'here exists a potential for additional finan cing by additional user service charges. 
Expenditures from the system are for the debt service of three-mi ll, six-mill an d nine-mill tax bonds 
and drainage related operation, m aintenan ce an d construction. 

A hhough not presently finan ced by user charges related to direct usage, the usual revenue source for 
an enterp rise fu nd activity, the financing by dedicated  mi llages or properties serviced, and the unique 
character of the services provided by the drainage system of the City, require enterprise fund 
accounting to provide m eaningful measurement of cost of services an d capital maintenan ce of the 
system . As such, property tax es ar e presented as ope rating revenues except for the two-mi ll tax, 
which is dedicated for capital im provements. Additionally, because of the peculiar geography of the 
City, the provision of drainage service is essential for the operation of water and sewerage systems. 
"/'he drainage system ope ration an d ma intenance expe nses include costs directly associated with the 
provision of drainage serv ices as well as substan tial allocated costs resulting from utilization of 
comMion resources such as administrative serv ices, maintenan ce, equipment, and power generation 
an d transm ission. 

(J) Self-Insurance/Risk M an age_n~  

The Board is self-insured for general liability, worker's compensation, unemployment compe nsation 
and hospitalization benefits an d claim s. The accru ed  liability for the various types of claims 
represem s an estimate by manageme nt of the eventu al loss on the claim s arising prior to year-end, 
including claims incurred an d not yet reported including estimates of both futu re payments of losses 

and related claims adjustments agreement expense both allocated and unalloc ated . Estimated 
expenses were based on a case by cas e review. Estimated recoveries have also been considered by 
management in assessing the estimated losses. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

N OTES TO FINANCIAl, STATEM ENTS 
{Continued) 

( 1 ) .Sun maarE of Si~xfificant Accounting Policies (Continued 

(K) Contributed Capital 

Contributions from developers and others, and receipts of Federal, State and City gran ts for 
acqui.';ition of prope rty, plant and equipment are recorded as contributed capital in fund equity. 

Costs related to issuing bonds are capitalized and am ortized based  upon the methods used to 
appro~fimate the interest method over the life of the bonds. Beginning with fiscal years in 1994 an d 
thereafter, gains an d losses associated with refundings an d advan ce refundings are be ing deferred and 
amortized based upon the methods used to approximate the interest me thod over the life of the new 
bonds or the remaining term  on any refu nded bond, whichever is shorter. 

(M ) "I 

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "M em oran dum Only" to indicate that they 
are presented only to facilitate finan cial an alysis. Data in these columns do not present financial 
position, results of operations, or cash flows, in conform ity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Such data is not com par able to a consolidation since interfund eliminations have not been 
m ade. 

(N) (:ash Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, only cash on han d an d on depe sit at financial 
institutions are considered to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposits, treasury bills and other 
securities ;are considered investm ents. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

(2) Cash and Investments 

The folk~wing are the components of the Board's Enterprise Fund's cash and investments at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998: 

Decem ber 31 1999 

Cash: 
Enterprise fire d 
Pension tru st fund 

Certificates of deposit 

Total carrying am ount of deposits 

Investm ents: 
Enterp rise fund 
Pension tm st fund 

December 3 K.19_9_8 

Cash: 
Enterprise fund 
Pension tru st fund 

Certificates of deposit 

Total carrying am ount of deposits 

Investments: 
Enterprise fund 
Pension trust fund 

Unres tricted Restricted Total 

2,954,260 $ 239,627 $ 
11.766 

3.193,887 
11.766 

2,966,026 239,627 3,205,653 

107,938,3,:14 107,938,344 

2,966,026 108,177,971 111,143,997 

172.039.813 
33,521,732 33,521,732 

172,039,813 

$ 175,005,839 $ 141,699,703 $ 316,705,542 

1,142,082 $ 262,780 $ 
28.486 

1,170,568 262,780 

94,226,790 

1,404,862 
28.486 

1,433,348 

94,226,790 

1,170,568 94,489,570 95,660,138 

156.848.020 
57,129,444 57,129.444 

156.848.020 

$ 158,018,588 $ 151,619,014 $ 309,637,602 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD  O F NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

(2) 

The composition of investments is as follows 

Enterprise Fund: 
U.S. Government Securities and 
Instrum entalities 
Repurchase Agreements 

Pension Trust Fund: 
M oney M arket 
Corporate Bonds 
U .S. Governm ent Agency 
U .S. Governm ent Securities 
U .S. G overnm ent Insured 
Equities 

1999 
Carrying 
V alue 

$ 33,521,732 

$ 33,521,732 

7,480,526 
30,428,909 
24,258,405 
6,309,153 
4,107,259 
99,455,561 

172,039,813 

Carryi[ng 
Value 

56,879,444 
250,000 

57,129,444 

5,642,033 
30,002,149 
22,583,998 
4,958,047 
7,509,117 
86,152:,676 

2 
3 

Cash and Cenificates of Deposit - At December 31, 1999, the bank balances of the Board's cash 
totaled $3,709,614 and certificates of deposit totaled $107,938,344. Of the cash bank balan ce, 
$192,206 is covered by federal depository insuran ce. At December 31, 1998, the bank balan ces of 
the Board's cash totaled $3,521,141 an d certificates of del~ sit totaled $94,226,799. Of the cash 
bank balance, $272,003 is covered by federal depository insurance. Th e remaining amount of the 
Board's cash bank balan ces an d all certificates of deposit for 1999 and 1998 were entirely covered by 
collateral held by custodial agents of the finan cial institutions in the name of the Board. 

Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of th e U.S. Treas ury, agencies, an d 
instrurr~ntalities, com mercial paper rated A-! by Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-I by M ood y's 
Commercial Paper Record, bankers' acceptan ces an d repurchase agreements. In addition, the pe nsion 
trust fired is authorized to invest in corporate bonds rated  A or better by Stan dard & Poor 
Corporation or AA A or be tter by M ood y's Investors Service, and equity securities. 

The Board's investments at Decembe r 31, 1999 an d 1998 are categorized above to give an  indication 
of the level of risk as sumed by the Board at year-end, Category 1 includes investments that ar e 
insured or registered or securities which are held by the Board or its agents in the Board's name. 
Category 2 includes uninsured an d unregistered investme nts with the sec urities held by the 
counterp arty's tru st departme nt or agent in the Board's name. Category 3 includes uninsured an d 
unregistered investments where the securities are held by the counterp arty or by its tru st department 
or agent but not in the Board's name. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD O F NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES 3"O FINAN CIAL STATEM EN I'S 
(Continued) 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Board has a single employer contributory retirement plan covering all full-time employees, the 
Pension ]'rust Fund (PTF). The Board's payroll for current employees covered by PTF for the years 
endea:l December 31, 1999 and 1998 was $31,276,546 mad $31,544,198, respe ctively; such amounts 
exclude overtime an d standby payroll. Total payroll, including overtime an d standby payroll, was 
$38,10(/,528 an d $38,384,730 for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. At 
Dex:ember 3 I, the PIT membership consisted of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and terminated employees entitled  to 
benefits but not yet receiving them  

Current employees 
Vested 
N onvested 

1999 

521 

846 
538 

1,384 

1,995 

555 

848 
633 

1,481 

2,036 

The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board of 1956 in accordan ce with Louisian a 
statutes. The Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension Committee of the 
PTF. Effective January 1, 1996, the plan becan ae qualified under lntem al Revenue Code Section 
401(a) and thus is tax exempt. 

Tb, e plan provides for retirement benefits as well as  death an d disability benefits. AlL benefits vest 
after ten years of service. Employees who retire at or after age sixty-two with ten years of credited 
serv ice', are entitled to an  an nual retirement be nefit, payable biweekly for life, in an  am ount equal to 
two percent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years, 
increasing by (1) one-half percent per year for service years over ten years, (2) an additional one-half 
percent per year for service years over twenty years and (3) an  additional one pe rcent per year for 
serv ice years over thirty years, for a n'uaximum of four pe rcent for each yeas of credited service. 
Average compensation is the average an nual earned compe nsation less $1,200 for the period of 
thirty-six successive m onths of service during which the employee 's compensation was the highest. 
Employees with thirty years or more of credited service may retire without a reduction in be nefits. 
Employees may retire prior to age sixty-two an d/or without thirty years of service with a red uction of 
three percent for each year of age below the age of sixty-two if an  employee has a minimum of thirty 
year s cneditable serv ice to the Board. If an em ployee leaves covered em ployment or dies be fore three 
years of credited service, the accumulated employee contributions plus related investme nt earnings 
are refunded to the employee or designated be neficiary. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BC)~d~,D OF NEW  ORLFANS 

NOTES TO  FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

{Continued} 

The retirement allowance for retirees over age sixty-two is subject to a cost of living adjustment each 
January 1, provided that the member retired on or after January 1, 1984. The adjustme nt is based on 
the increase in the Consumer Price Index for all urban wage ear~lers published by the U .S. 
Department of Labor, but is limited  to an  annual maximum of two percent on the first $10,000 of 
initial retirement benefits. Effective September 23, 1993, employers may transfer credit be tween the 
Boal'd's plan  and the City of N ew Orlean s retireme nt system with full cred it for vested  service. 

The Board and its employees are obligated under plan  provisions to m ake all required contributions 
to the plan. The required contributions are actuarially determined  an d include current service cost 
and am ortization of the unfunded actuarial liability over 6 years using the level percentage of payroll 
method. Level percentage of payroll emp loyer contribution rates are determined using the entry age 
normal actuarial funding method. Emp loyees are required to contribute four percent of their regular 
salaries or wages in excess of $1,200 annually. 

The alm ual required contribution for the current year was  determined as par t of the December 31, 
1999 actuar ial valuation using th e entry age norm al cost method. Th e actuarial assumptions included 

(a) 7.0% investment rate of return (net of admi nistrative expenses) an d (b) projected salary increase 
of 5.0% per year. Both (a) an d (b) included an inflation component of 2.0%. Th e actuarial value of 
assets was deterrraned using a seven-year weighted market average. The unfunded actu arial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The 
rem a~nint~ am ortization period  at Decem ber 31, 1999 was 5 year s. 

The Board's net pension asset for the years ended De cembe r 31 were as follows 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 

Adjustments to an nual required 
contribution 

Annual pe nsion cost 
Contributions m ade 

Increase in net pe nsion asset 

3,304,992 
(72,339) 

295,722 

3,528,375 
5,270,098 

1,741,723 

Net pe nsion asset, beginning of year 1,033,413 

4,696,092 
(34,623) 

114,926 

4,776,395 
5,315,197 

538,802 

494,611 

Net pension asset, end of year $ 2,775,136 1,033,413 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTF~  TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued} 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued 

Trend inform ation is as follows 

Year ended: 
Decem ber 31, 1999 
Decem ber 31, 1998 
December 31. 1997 

Annllltl 
Pension Pecentage of 

Cost fAPC) Contributed 

Net 
Pension 
Asset 

$ 3,528,376 
$ 4,776,395 
$ 5,805,056 

149% 
111% 
95%  

$ 2,775,136 
$ 1,033,413 
$ 494,611 

]'he actuarially determ ined contribution requirement for the Board is 16.85 percent and for 
employees is 4.0 percent. The actual Board's and employee's contributions (including contributions 
for transferred employees from other pension plans) for the years ended I~.cember 31 are as follows: 

Em ployer 
Employee 

Total contributions 

$ 5,270,098 
1,028,094 

5,315,197 
1,149~225 

6.464,422 

_DRO P 

Begim sng in 1996, the Board offered employees a "Deferred  Retirement Option Plan " (DROP), an 
optional retirement program which allows an  employee to elect to fi'eeze his or her retirement 
benefits, but continue to w ork an d draw a salary for a m inim um period of one year to a m aximum 
period of three years. W hile continuing employment, the retireme nt benefits are segregated from 
overall plan assets available to other participan ts. As of December 31, 1999 an d 1998, 36 an d 33 
employees, respectively, participated  in th e plan , The am ount of plan  assets for these individuals 
was $1,188,365 and $1,145,539 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO  FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

(4) ProA?er.ly, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant an d equipment consisted of the following: e, 

~ .~?._Department 

Property plant and equipment in service: 
Real estate rights $ 
Pnwer and pumping stations: 
Buildings 
M achinery 
Distribution systems 
Connections and m eters 
]-;uel oil tanks 
Power tran smission 
Genexal plant items  
Building 

Total property, plant an d 
equipm ent in service 

1998 

2,898,138 2,898,138 

47,164,228 
90,408,125 
105,730,508 
23,894,199 

138,373 
7,154,508 
61,247,454 
2,959,970 

4-4,398,682 
88,841,243 
100,289,922 
23,114,372 

138,373 
7,211,840 
60,084,207 
3,094,263 

341,595,503 330,071,040 

Add: property, plant an d equipment in 
progress 46,152,488 45,664,645 

Total property, plant an d equipment 387,747,991 375,735,685 

Less: accum ulated depreciation 152,848,796 142.861.880 

Net property, plan t an d equipment - 

water department $ 234,899,195 232,873,805 

I1-21 

Useful 
Lives 

57 Years 
40 Years 
75 Years 
50 Years 
50 Years 
50 Years 
12 Years 
25 Years 



(4) Pro l2erl3- 

SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEAN S 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
{Continued) 

Sewera.ge Department 

Property, plant an d equipm ent in service 

R~;al estate rights 
Power and pumping stations 
Buildings 
M achinery 
~ewer 
1~oDse coImections 
Power transmission 
Treatm ent plants 
Ge.neral plant items 
Buildings 

874,847 878,916 

21,003,340 
23,855,320 
121,499,606 
11,752,449 
4,529,913 
96,378,026 
41,500,379 
1.336,971 

19,991,745 
21,323,152 
105,010,551 
10,918,450 
4,529,913 
91,511,921 
40,350,303 
1,336,971 

Total property, plant and equipm ent 
m Service 322.730.851 295,851,922 

Add: property, plant and equipm ent in 
Progress 82,578,620 83,645,988 

"f otal property, plant and equipment 405,309,471 379,497,910 

Less: accumulated depreciation 117,889,356 110.341.117 

N et property, plant and equipm ent. 
sewerage department $ 287,420,115 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATI~R BOARD OF NEW  ORL[~ d'~IS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

Pro3~e_ _~.y~ Plan! an d Equipment (Continued 

Propex~y, plant and equipment in service 
Real estate rights 
Power and pumping stations: 

Building~ 
Nlachinery 
Canals 

Sub- surface drain 
Power transm ission 
G eneral plant item s 
Buih:lings 

Total property, plant an d 
equipm ent in service 

A dd: property, plant an d 
equipment in progress 

$ 3,581,586 3,582,588 

95,006,422 
89,322,584 
190,811,405 
8,574,175 
10,898,418 
33,406,527 
2,584,271 

93,107,832 
88,807,805 
187,718,479 
8,574,174 
10,91.5,658 
33,787,625 
2,584,271 

434,]85,388 429,078,432 

43,686,382 41,322,965 

'Total property, plan t and equipment 477,871,770 470,401,397 

Less: accum ulated depreciation 

Net property, plant an d equipment- 
drainage department 

l 16,969,959 108,161,824 

360,901,811 362,239,573 

All D.epartm ents 

Total property, plant and equipment 1,270,929,232 1,225,634,992 

Less: accumulated depreciation 387,708,111 361,364,821 

Net property, plant an d equipment - 
All departments $ 883,221,121 864,270,171 

Interest capitalized in 1999 an d 1998 is im m aterial to total property, plant and equipment 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES I"O FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

(5) Customel Receivables 

Customer receivables at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of the following 

(6) 

999: 
W ater 
Sewer 

998: 
W ater 
Sewer 

Custom er 
Account~ 

8,191,568 
4,584,036 

12,775,604 

7,759,475 
4,233,610 

11,993,085 

Due from the City of New O rleans 

Allowance 
for Doubtful 
Accounts Net 

2,071,244 
1,037,749 

3,108~93 

2,180,206 
1.069,802 

3,250,008 

6,120,324 
3,546,287 

9,666,611 

5.579,269 
3,163.808 

8,743.077 

In accordance with the term s of an agreement in principle with the City of New Orleans, the Board 
and the City agreed to offset $2,098,687 (net of unearned discount $285,696) owed by the City to the 
Board at the rate of $200,000 annually in lieu of civil service charges through 2009. As of 
Decernber 31, 1999, $1,290,512 was due from the City of New Orlean s. 

(7) Contributed Capital 

The follow ing is a sum m ary of changes in contributed capital by source 

M unicipality $ 
Developers and others 
Federal and State 

Balm~ce 
January 1, 

1999 Additions 

8,868,396 
66,660,308 
61,803,869 
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1,942,754 
8.841.185 

10,783,939 

Balance 
Decem ber 31 

1999 

8,868,396 
68,603,062 
70.645.054 
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SE, W ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued] 

Contributed CaPital (Continued 

Balance 
January 1, 

1998 Additions 

M unicipality $ 8,868,396 
Developers and others 66,037,158 
Federal and S'~ate 57,756,374 

623,150 
4.047.495 

$ 132,661,928 4,670,645 

(8) Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable consisted of the following as of December 31 

Descriptions 

Balance 
Decem ber 31 

1998 

8,868,396 
66,660,308 
61,803.869 

Principal Balances 
1999 1998 

7.00% water revenue bonds, series 1986 due 
in annual principal installm ents ranging from 
$435,000 to $2,055,000; final payment due 
December 1, 2003 $ 3,455,000 5,355,000 

4.30% to 6.25% sewerage revenue bond, series 
1997, due m annual principal installme nts 
ranging fi'om $910,000 to $2,425,000; final 
payment due June 1, 2017 

5.00% to 5.15% drainage system bonds, series 
1994, due in annual principal installments 
ranging from $980,000 to $1,140,000; final 
payment due Novem ber 1, 2003 

5.00% water levenue bonds, series 1998, due in 
annual principal installm ents ranging from 
$535,000 to $1,220,000; final payment due 
December 1. 2018 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINAN CIAl. STATE M EN/'S 
(Continued} 

(8) Boncls.._Payable (Continued) 

Descriptions 

5.00% sewer revenue bonds, series 1998 
due in annual principal installm ents 
ranging from $835,000 to $1,910,000; 
final payment due December 1, 2018 

5.00% drain age system bonds, series 1998, 
due in annual principal installm ents ranging 
from $320,(K)0 to $760,000; final payment 
due Decembel 1. 2018 

Less current m aturities 

Principal Balances 
1999 1998 

$ 24,625,000 25,000,000 

9,700,000 I 0,000,000 

86,120,000 
5.635.000 

80,485,(~0 

90,725,000 
4.605.000 

86,120,000 

The annual requirem ents to am ortize all bonds payable as of December 31, 1999 including interest 
payments of $43,742,343, are as follows: 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005-2009 
2010-2014 
2015-2018 

Total 

Revenue 
Bonds 

8,041,122 
6,274,282 
6,264,315 
6,248,279 
5,691,424 
28,444,954 
28,646,309 

_ _ .20 428 722 

1,994,770 
1,996,250 
1,988,546 
1,986,812 
785,532 

3,920,420 
3,970,388 
3,180,268 

10,035,892 
8,270,532 
8,252,861 
8,235,091 
6,476,956 
32,365,374 
32,616,697 
23~608,990 

The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of restricted funds 
for debt serv ice as follows: 

I. Debt service funds are required for the payment of interest trod principal on the revenue 
arid tax bonds. M onthly deposits on revenue bonds ar e required to Ix: made into this fund 
from operations in an  am ount equal to 1/6 of the interest falling due on the next interest 
payment date, and an am ount equal to 1/12 of the principal falling due on the next principal 
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(Continued) 

payment date. All debt service funds are administered by the Board of Liquidation. The 
required amount to be accumulated in this fund was $1,125,092 and $611,086 at 
l)ecem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively; the accumulated b',dance at Decembe r 31, 1999 
and 1998 was $2,221,274 an d $1,603,606 respectively. 

2. A debt service reserve is required  for an am ount equal to but not less than fifty percent 
of the am ount req uired to be credited  in said m onth to the debt service fu nd until th ere shall 
be accumulated in the debt serv ice reserve account the lar gest am ount re quired in an y future 
calendar year to pay the principal and interest on outstanding bonds, except for the water, 
~ewer and 1986 drainage 9 mill tax bonds. The water, sewer and 1986 drainage 9 mi ll tax 
bonds require an am ount equal to th e largest am ount required in any future calendar year to 
pay the principal of an d interest on outstan ding bonds. There is no debt service reserv e 
required for the 1994 drainage 6 mill an d 1998 drainage 9 m ill tax bonds. The required 
amount to be  accumulated  in this fund was $8,064,911 at Decembe r 31, 1999 and 1998; the 
accumulated balan ce at Decembe r 31, 1999 and 1998 was $8,064,911. 

The r~el operating revenues of the W ater Department an d the Sewerage Department of the Board for 
the year ended December 31, 1999 were adequate to meet the bond indenture re quired debt serv ice 
coverage" of 130 percent. Th e Board is in compliance with the req uirements of its long-term debt 
agreements at December 3 I, 1999. 

The statutory limi t of tax bonds at Decembe r 31, 1999 is $86,000,000 providing a debt margin for tax 
bonds of $72,065,000. 

(9) Bond Refinancing 

in August 1986, the Boar d defeased water an d sewer bonds 
revenue bonds rem aining outstanding as of Decembe r 31, 
$5,190,000, respectively. 

(10) Due._t~LC~h~ of New Orlean s 

Th e amount of defeased an d water 
1999 an d 1998 was $3,310,000 and 

The Board bills and collects sanitation charges on be half of the City of New Orlean s (City). The 
Board is not liable for an y uncollected  san itation charges. Th e am ount due the City for san itation 
fees collected was $255,637 and $211,352 at Dec ernber 31, 1999 an d 1998, respectively. 

( 11 ) Prope]1~,._Tax es 

Property taxes are levied by the City of New Orleans 
an enforceable lien on the property as of Jan uary 1. 

January I, and are delinquent on February I. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
{Continued} 

( 11 ) Properlt_y.._'l'axes (Continued 

The assessed value of the prope rty is determined by an elected Board of Assessors. The assessed 
value for 1999 was $1,700,550,000. The combined  tax rate dedicated  for the Board for the year s 
ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 was $22.59 per $1,000 of assessed  valuation. Th ese dedicated 
funds ar e available for ope rations, m aintenance, construction an d extension of the drainage system 
(except ff, r subsurface systems). 

(12) C__om~iL~,en t s 

a. (_.
'~fi ta] Improvements 

At Dec:ember 31, 1999, the Board's budget for its five-year capital improvements program totaled 
$478,553,000 including $130,346,000 for water, $144,336,000 for sewerage and $203,871,000 for 
draina~;e. Due to certain regulatory an d legislative chan ges, additional capital improvements w ill 
probably Ix: required. Future capital im proveme nt program expenditures may require the issuan ce of 
additional debt depending on the am ount and timing of expenditures. As of December 31, 1999, the 
Board has committed or appropriated $62,352,350 in investments for use in future capital projects 
an d has $55,599,677 of bond proceeds remaining for construction. The capital project investments 
are included in restricted as sets. 

The capital improvements budget for 2000 is $198,196,000 

Significant projects included in prope rty, plant and equipment in progress as of Dec ember 31, 1999 
include the following: 

b. Self-insurance 

Filter Improvem ents at the Carrollton W ater Treatm ent Plan t 
City-wide Sewer Rehabilitation Program.s 

Drainage Pumping Station #1 

The Board is self-insured for general liability, worker's compensation, unemploym ent com pensation 
and hospitalization benefits and claim s. Settled  claims have not exceeded  excess coverage in any of 
the past three fiscal year s. Hospitalization benefits and unemployment compe nsation are charged to 
payroll related expe nse. 

General liability claim s ar e segr egated intern ally by "claims" and "suits" depe nding on the scope and 
type of claim, an d are han dled by the Office of the Special Counsel an d Adm inistrative Services. 
Individual general liability losses have ran ged from $15 to $1,000,000, illustra ting the volatility of 
this exposure. The provision for claims  expense for 1999 an d 1998 anaounted to $4,187,150 and 
$2,102,500, respectively. 

W orker's compensation (benefit) expense provision for 1999 an d 1998 amounted  to $(1,049,843) and 
$710,803, respectively. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W A'I~ R BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES "IX) FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
(Continued) 

The Board is responsible under state statute for all unemployment compensation claim s by form er 
employees. The Board's expense provision for unemp loyme nt amounted to $5,531 in 1999 and 
$18,874 in 1998 an d is included  in payroll related  expe nse. The expense provision for 
unemployment is recognized when incurred. 

The hospitalization self-in surance benefits are administered  by Blue Cross of l.,ouisian a. The Board's 
expe nse provision in excess of the employee contributions for 1999 an d 1998 amounted to 
approximately $6,100,000 an d is included in payroll related expense. 

Chan ges in the claims payable amount is as follows 

Fis_s~LY.e~L 

1998 
1999 

CiltTenl 
Y ear 

Claim s and 
Beginning Estimate Claim 
of Year Chan e.ge..._ _  _  Payme nts End of Year 

$20,065,397 7,295,767 
$22,974,675 7,165,152 

The composition of clai m s payable is as follows 

Short-Term Claims Liability 

4,386,489 
3,797,863 

Health 
Incurred Total Short- 

Fiscal W orkers' But Not General Term 
Year Com.pensation Reported Liability Claim s 

998 $ 308,(~6 
999 $ 304,181 

1,125,213 
1,355,191 

15,797o550 
19,984,703 

17,231,409 
21,644,075 

22,974,675 
26,341,964 

Long-Term 
W orkers 

5,743,266 
4,697,889 

Total 
Claim s 
Liability 

22,974,675 
26,341,964 

In addition to providing pe nsion benefits, the Board provides certain health care be nefits for retired 
employees in accordance with its pension plan provisions. All of the Board's employees may become 
eligiblc: for those be nefits if they reach norm al re tirement age while working for th e Boar d. The cost 
of retiree, health care is recognized when incurred including an estimate for tbe  am ount incurred but 
not yet reported, For 1999 an d 1998, the costs incurred by the Board for those be nefits were 
approximately $1,354,000 and $1,401,000, respectively. Th e numbe r of participants currently 
eligible to receive health care be nefits is 549 and 606 as of December 31, 1999 an d 1998, 
respectively. 
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SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
{Continued) 

(12) CoJnj_nj.t__ments (Continued) 

c. Regulato_..ry M atters 

The Board, as well as other utilities, is subject to environmental standards imposed by federal, state 
and local environme ntal laws and regulations. The Board has entered into a consent decree with the 
United States which allows the Board to go forward with its major prograrn to repair, rehabilitate an d 
expand the sewerage system. The overall costs of the program is estimated at $455 million over a 
pe riod ending in 2010. In addition to this program, the Board will also pay fines of $1.5 million, plus 
interest of which $1,050,000 has been paid at December 31, 1999, and has begun a supplemental 
environment project of $2.0 million to improve water quality. These costs are included in claims 
payable on the Enterprise Fund balance sheet. 

d. l: 

The Board is also participating in Fed eral financial award programs which are subject to finan cial 
and compliance audits by various agencies. Any disallowed cost could be  a liability to the Board. 
As pan of Federal and other governmental agency funding, the Board is required  to match a portion 
of funding received. The Board does not foresee any problems in its m atching requireme nts. 

The Boald has received a $100 mi llion comm itment from the United  States Environmental Protection 
Agency. The Board has received $33,025,000 through De cembe r 31, 1999. The Board has expended 
$19,733,728 of the commitment at De cember 31, 1999. 

(13) Deferred Compensation Plan  

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan  created  in accordance with Intern al 
Revenue Code Section 457. This plan , available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of 
their salary until future years. The deferred com pe nsation is not available to employees until 
term ination, retirem ent, death, or unforeseeable em ergency. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan , all property, and fights purchased with those 
amounts, an d all income  attributable to those anrounts, property or rights are held in trust for the 
employee.s; therefore, the as sets of the plan  are not included in these finan cial statements. 

(14) Bu_~ Led e!t 

Ope rating and capital expe nditure budgets ar e adopted by the Boar d on a bas is consistent with 
generally accepted  accounting principles. W hile not legally required, this budgetary inform ation is 
employed  as a m anagement control device during the year . Comparison be tween actual and 
budgeted expenses is not a req uired  presentation for an  Enterprise Fund. 
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Fi~ca 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992"* 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Goventm ent~t 

Number of M ills 

(Per $I,000 of assessed value) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

City of 
~e._W_~_.rlea n s 

58.28 
58.28 
71.18" 
75.80 
75.90 
75.90 

75.90 
77.09 
77.09 
77.09 

Source: City of New Orleans 

Odeans 
Levee Board 

!1.29 
11.29 
11.29 
12.01 
11.29 

12.01 
12.01 
12.01 
12.01 
12.01 

Sewerage & 
W ater Board 

of 

New O~2[~  

25.23 
25.23 
25.23 
22.59 
22.59 
22.59 
22.59 
22.59 
22.59 
22.59*** 

O rlea ns 
Parish 

Sfhool Board 

42.39 

42~9 
42J9 
45.10 
45.10 
45.10 
45.10 
45.40 
45.40 
45.40 

*The ltom estead IE:xem ption is not allowed for the new 9-M ill Police and Fire Tat. 

**M illage rates werl adjusted upward to compensate for a decrease in assessment values. 

*'t3 m ills adopted in 1967 Expires in 2017 

***6 m ills adopted in 1978 Eltpi~ s in 2027 

~*'9 m ills adopted  lit 1982 expires in 2032 
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Audubon 
Park & 
~.~  Total 

4.27 
4.2"] 
4.27 
4.55 
4.55 
4.55 
4.55 
4.55 
4.55 
4.55 

142.58 
142.58 
155.48 
161.24 
160.62 
161.34 
161.34 
161.64 
161.64 
161.64 



SEW ERAGE AND W A'IER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

Com putation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

December 31, 1999 
(Unaudited) 

Direct debt: 

Sewerage and W ater Board, 

net of debt service funds 
(tax bonds otdy) 

Ov erlapping debt: 
City of New (hleans 
Audubon Park Commission 

Orleans Paxish School Board (l) 
Orlean s L~:vec District (1) 

Total c,veflapping debt 

Total direct and 
overlapping debt 

Net 
Outstanding 

_ _  Debt _  

Percentage Overlapping 
__ _ _ ,l~ bt 

~12.635~qQl~ 100% $12,635,000 

487,676,000 
60,555,000 
365,476,000 
121.661.000 

035,368,000 

$1.048,003,000 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100%  

487,676,000 
60,555,000 
365,476,000 
121,661,000 

035,368.000 

$1,048,003,000 

(}) Tbe fiscal ).ear of the Or leans Parish School bo ard and Orleans Levee District ends on June 301h; 
overlapping debl is based on June 30, 1998 financial information. 
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?o~n 

2o(o 

2ocv 

:,oo~ 
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SEW E~ G~ a V* ̂T~R BOARD OF ~E w OKLF~ANS 
scl~ DLn.-E or FLrlURE DEB1 p̂ yMY)-TpS 

DECEMBER 31.1~ 9 

V.l~r~ R~ euue Bond= S~r.er R~ =t BoJdJ D~ InI|* r~ en * BoldJ 

Inle t ~41 ,~50 7g~ g6 ] .490.1RE 1.192,498 2 ] 5,05~ 479,712 4,400.~,~2 

Principal 435,000 $60,000 97O,OOO 8~5,000 1,035,000 33~,000 4~10,0{)0 
Inte r 98,000 748,~18 1.446.266 t,141.19~ }66.058 4bO,192 4.0~0,~32 

Pr~c,l~l 500,000 60~.000 ] .I O0.OO0 9~0,000 1.140.000 370.000 4.66 J,o00 
Ln~ t 35,00o 678,686 I .:~4g,(~l 5 1,031~4~ $1.710 41~.102 3~$70,091 

Pn~ pel 

Pnnc~pal 
lnt~ l 

~ nclpa] 

~ nopDl 

Fn~c~pu 
Inten t 

Pnncmpa 
lntf~ % 

Pnnc~p~l 

630.000 I,I 70.000 91{5,000 
641.630 1~291~95 973,498 

660,o00 I.~45.000 L030,O00 
603.043 }~23,139 913,045 

690,000 l ~130.000 1.075.000 
56-,.618 1.I~2.6~0 I~9.9~6 

725.000 L41~,000 1,135,000 
534,155 1.056,g~9 8)3,969 

770,000 i ~o,ooo 12oo,ooo 
504,068 9~S,420 764,634 

810,000 I ,~70.000 I ~6~,000 
471,728 ~98,i3~ 71 ;,462 

845,000 1,655.000 I ~20.000 
436,493 815.070 654,750 

SSS,OOO ]p45000 1.380,00o 
398.468 726234 594.660 

92~,000 } ,840.000 1,445,000 
358,643 63-,.125 530,10a 

~68,oo~ I,~ o.ooo I~tO.O00 
318,63O 532.003 4~1.~94 

.Ol~,OOO .~.OSO.O00 1.885.000 
-,69.793 426,884 388,16~ 

,060,000 2,170,000 1.655.000 
-,21,Sg0 313~00 310,801 

10.000 2~90.000 1,735.000 
70.700 1~2,780 228,791 

,165,000 ~,425,000 1,820,00~ 
116.865 65,47B 14 I,OOC 

2~o,o0o 
59.780 

910,000 
47.750 

390.000 3.175,000 
395~32 3,301,95S 

405,00~ 3340.0(~0 
371,742 3,1 I0,972 

425,000 3.520,000 
350,986 2,9]6~ 0 

450,000 3,~.~S,000 
)3).sbo .~,~3t.sl~ 

475,ooo 3,935.O00 
314,660 2.558.782 

~oo,ooo 4,145.000 
294,472 2.37~.797 

S20.O00 4.)40.0O0 
27.~.72~ 2,170.035 

545,000 4.sss.ooD 
249,582 1,965,94' 

570,000 4.780,00,3 

595,000 5,010.000 
198.280 I.SOg,lO7 

170,018 I ~54.860 

6SS.O00 s.540.000 
140,018 95~,599 

6~5.000 5.t20.000 
~0S250 700,5:1 

720,000 6,130,000 

760.000 3J90,000 
38.000 14~.53C, 

3 4~S.000 15.760,00{) 25~345,000 24.625,000 4~35.000 9,700,000 86,12O,OOC 
44-'400 $.s~8.802 t 5.976,471 12.$46.734 583.616 5.334.370 43.742.373 

$ 3,~O7,4C*0 $ 24,34~,~02 $ 44,321.471 ~ 37.471.734 $ 4,75~.616 $ 15,034.370 $ ]-,q.862,~93 
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SEW ERAG E AND W ATER BOARD O F NEW  O RLEAN S 

Ten Largest Taxpayers 

Decem ber 31, 1998 * 

(Unaudited) 

BellSouth Telecom m unications 

Entergy Service 

Itibe rnia National Bank 

First NBC 

W hitney National Bank 

A T & T Com m unications 

M etropolitan Life Insurance 

Tenetsub (M ercy & Baptist Hospitals) 

M arriot H otel Properties 

University H ealth (:!are System 

Source: City of New O rleans 

Type of 

~usiness 

Telephone utilities 

Electric and gas utilities 

Financial institution 

Financial institution 

Financial institution 

Telecom m unications 

Insurance 

M edical com ples 

H otel 

M edical com plex 

1999 

Assessed 

Xa[~  

$67,511 

78,571 

23,794 

29,679 

22,377 

16,725 

16,195 

12,603 

13,343 

12,409 

$293,207 

( * ) The latest date available for the Ten Largest Taxpayers in the City of New Orleans 
is for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
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Percentage 
of Total 
assessed 

value 

3.60%  

4.19%  

1.27%  

1.58%  

1.19%  

0.89%  

0.86%  

0.67%  

0.71%  

0.66%  

15.62%  



The Sewerage, and W ater Board observed its 100 anniversary during 1999 with special events and the 
re-naming of a drainage pumping station for the engineer who designed the world-fam ous W ood Screw 
Pump~-A. Baldwin W ood. M uch o! the water, sewerage and drainage systems were built in the early 
1900s. The top photo shows the 1926 construciion oi drainage canals at South Claiborne Avenue and 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

999 ACTUAl, CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

C.P.# 

II0 
118 
122 
135 
155 
156 
157 

214 
221 
235 
239 

600 
700 
800 

W ATERW ORKS 

Normal Extension & Replacement 
M odernization of Steam System 
Filter Rehabilitation 
Improvement of Chem ical System 
M echanical Renovations of Conventional Basins 
Advanced Carrollton W ater Treatment 
Advan ced Algiers W ater Tre atment 

TOTAL W ATERW ORKS 

Normal Extensions & Replace ments 
Feed er M ain Extension, General 
CBD and N .O East Trans M ains 
M ains in Street Departm ent Contracts 

"IO TAL W ATER DISTRIBUTION 

Water Share of Power Projects 
W ater Emergency Reserve 
W ater Share of General Budget Items 

TOTAL W ATER DEPARTM ENT 

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of intere st expense. 

IV-I 

$1,072,682.60 
707,144.08 
416,491.94 
137,826.02 
46,630.63 
532,470.30 
81.864.00 

$2,995,109.57 

$745,983.04 
226,305.81 

105.14 
1,731,212.56 

$2,703,606.55 

1,154,743.09 
488,805.78 

4,786,147.36 

$12,128,412.35 



C.P.# 

313 
317 
326 
339 
348 
360 
367 

600 
g00 

SFW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

999 ACTUAL CAPITA[, EXPEN DITURES 

SEW ERAGE SYSTEM 

I:orce M ain East Gentilly 
Normal Extensions & Replacement of Gravity M ains 
Extensions & Replacement lo Sewer Pumping Stations 
M ain in Streets Dept. Contracts 
Norm al Extensions & Replacemem s 
Repairs and/or Replacement of Sewer Lines 
Collection System Eval/Survey Uptown 

TOTAL SEW ERAGE SYSTEM 

SEW AGE TREATM ENT 

M odification & Expansion of W BSTP to M GD 

TOIAL SEW AGE TREATM ENT 

Sewerage Share of Power Projects 
Sewerage Share of General Budget Items 

IOJAL SEW ERAGE DEPARTM ENT 

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of interest expense 

IV-2 

$603,492.85 
2,017,724.92 
249,589.26 

2,885,610.07 
1,802,900.60 
59,417.49 

1,736,472.62 

$19.355,207,8 

$3,018,915.39 

$3.018.915.39 

104.972.88 
4,246,513.09 

$26,725.609.17 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

999 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

C.P.# CANALS 

418 
439 
453 
463 
466 
471 
477 
486 
497 

511 
520 
535 
550 
554 
555 
557 

600 
703 
800 

Normal Extension & Replacements 
SWB Part DrngTchoupitoulas Paving Project 
Improvements to M etairie Relief Canal 
Storm water M anagement Plan 
Louisiana Ave. Canal 
C.O.E. Drainage Study 
Eng. Design-Claiborne M anifold 
Napoleon Canal Improvements 
Flerida Ave. Can al - M azant to People 

TOTAL DRAINAGE CANALS 

PUM PING STATIONS 

Normal Extension & Rep./Stations 
Suction Canal DPS # 19 
Drainage Pumping Station #6 Improvements 
Additions to Drainage Pumping Station # 1 
Expan sion ofDwyer DPS 
Design Services for Improvement 
Floodgate DPS # 16 Discharge Tunnel 

TOTAL DRAINAGE PUM PING STA'I]ONS 

Drainage Share of Power Projects 
Drainage Emergency Reserve 
Ih'ainage Share of Gen eral Budget Items 

TOTAl, DRAINAGE DEPARTM ENT 

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of interest expan se 

IV-3 

$96,808.38 
77,914.41 
128,184.74 
112,276.04 
438,271.59 

1,298,155.04 
148,645.63 
50,3~4.23 
222,090.3g 

= =  
$ 2,572,730.44

j _ 

$250,694.47 
147,748.62 
23,510.39 
957,605.61 
270,504.01 
228,598.85 
55,864.62 

$1,934,526.57 

646,122.98 
28,120.37 

2,468,357.58 

$7,649,857.94 
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POW ER PURC HASED AND PRO DUC ED 
NATURAL GAS AND FUEL O IL CO NSUM FD - 1999 

KW -HO URS CO ST 

ELECTRIC POW ER PURCHASED 64,070~ 06~ $4,576,866 
E!._ECTRIC AND STEAM POW ER 
GENERATED BY THE S.&W .B,* 36,511,704 $8,860,755 

TOTAL 100,582,410 $13,437,621 

NO TE: * NATURAL GAS CO NSUM ED IN O PERATIO N W AS 

1,487,610 MCF AT A COST OF $6,836,117.49 
~ FUEL O IL CO NSUM ED W AS: 
9.550 GALLANS AT A COST OF $8,118.00 
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SEW ERA G E AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

W ATER PUM PED AND CONSUM ED - 1999 

Number of 
M eters 

7 
37 
17 
13 
95 
234 
60 
211 
674 

Free metered process water to 
various City departm ents and 
charitable instututions: 

Display Fountains 
Fire Department 
Swimm ing Pools 
Libraries 
M unicipal 
Parks and Playgrounds 
Police Departm ent 
Schools 

84 Sewerage and W ater Board 

Allowance for leaks in piping fixtures, etc 

Unmetered free use, such as: extinguishment 
of fires, cleanint., streets, flushing sewers, 
drains, and gutters, cleaning markets and 
other public buildings, under registration 
of meters, leaks in distribution system, etc. 

]oral W ater Pumped  

IV-8 

Gallons Percem 

5.366,900 
10,203,200 
27.991,900 
3.571,600 

110,867,700 
337,801,100 
389,422,00{) 
134.748.500 
019,972,900 

868.668.900 1.53% 

558.364.000 

29,570.412,100 

24,719.562,100 

0.98% 

52.12% 

43.57% 

00.00% 



SEW ERAG E AND W ATER BO ARD 

OF NEW  ORLEANS 

G A LLO N S M ETERED - PA Y W ATER CO N SUM PTIO N 1999 

M onth 

January 

February 

M arch 

April 

M ay 

June 

July 

August 

Septem ber 

October 

Novem ber 

D ecem ber 

Gross Total 

IV-9 

M onthly 
Consum ption 

1,866,566,900 

1,941,717,300 

1,929,245,200 

2,025,452,700 

2,134,699,800 

2,038,565,300 

2,125,723,300 

2,132,508,800 

2,303,040,800 

2,110,498,700 

1,933,085,200 

2,178,458,100 

24,719,562,100 



M onths 

SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  ORLEANS 

M ONTHLY ~rATER CHARGES COLLECTED * 1999 

W ater Service 
Charges & Fees 

84,207.181.91 
4.361,17654 
5.253.260 I I 
3.782,463,17 
4.287,216.79 
4,935.810.13 
4.343,477.19 
5,090,351.6] 
4.136,248 06 
5.069,277.53 
4,194.447.8 I 
4,046.860.87 

Delinquent 
Fees 

78.045.78 
84,773.14 
84.869.09 
70,874.10 
67,812.86 
84,952.89 
71.779A2 
87,686 33 
70,017.54 
99.988 31 
78,308.15 
90,11 I.I I 

1,505.35 
1.505.35 
1,505.35 
344,08 
1,505.35 
2,666.62 
1,505.35 
1,505.35 
344.08 

2.32254 
1,505.35 
1.849.43 

Tota 

853,707,77172 $969,218.72 $18.064.20 854,695.054.64 

SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARI) OF NEW  ORLEANS 

M ONTHLY SEW ERA GE CHA RGES COLLECTED - 1999 

Sewerage Service 
Charges 

Delinquenl 
Fees 

52,183.07 
56,66482 
56,734.39 
47,38781 
45,339 16 
56,78686 
47,99456 
58,604.50 
46.819 19 
66,806.99 
52,358.24 
60,20063 

837.695.156 47 647,88022 

IV -IO 

Total 

83,035~80007 
3.098,28445 
3,764,1911d 
2,744,670 70 
3,078,50193 
3,503.69666 
2,993,10686 
3,621,84023 
2,930,917.83 
3,561,09898 
3,032.167 98 
2.978,759 86 



 

TABLE I 
OARROLLTON TUREqDITIES 

RIVER 
(NTU) 
Fil

I
ers 

(NTU) [  
--5: -- 0.7 

~srF--%~T- 86~41 711 1 0.121 0.191 0,151 013J 0.121 

TABLE II 
CARROLLTON ALKALINITIES 

PARTS PER MILLION 

TABLE IIA 
OARROLLTON HARDNESS 
PARTS PER MILLION 

TABLE III 
CARROLLTON BACTERIA[. CHARACTERISTICS 

Total Coliform Analysis 

River Effluent of Coagulating Plant Tap Distribution 
1999 (1999) and Settling Reservoirs (1999) System 

Maximum (C;olonies 100 ml) 4,550 1,290 0 3 
Minimum (Colonies log ml) 0 0 0 0 
Average (Colonies / 00 ml) 905 43 0 0 
Num ber of Sam ples 365 172 365 2,233 
Number of Samples tegative 0 59 365 2,229 
Num ber of Sam ples r'ositive 365 113 *4 

" None of these four total coliform positive sam ples were fecal coliform positive, and none resulted in 
any violation of the Total Coliform Rule. 
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TABLE VII 
FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS DATA (1995 - 1999) FOR NEW  ORLEANS 

DRINKING W ATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM 

fTfl SSISSIPPn ]&'fVER~  P IN lbq~l~U  Y '~ VA I ~I~ 
PARAMETER (Before Purific abort) :ation) 

l~  A;5 uauu~) I MA~lbb MIN (U g----'--'------88 
.'-~' AS CaC03) 207 

~ []NESS (PPM A5 CaC;L)3) 16 
L'TECIOIE RARI:~ '~S-[] 'M A5 ~aUO3) 7{J 
T~IEG~ ,~ S (PPM A;5 CaC03) 86 5 
~ T~]RI~]LI] I Y (N ] ,U.) 7 
J~C'R~3~F~TR~ 'qi lUl) 19 

B 59 7.4 
6Z 10 

0.48 0.1D 
32~ 9b 

~~ 'D'~'CE.I L) S (IaPM) 4~D 3 
F~ EEq~ ~]DTjAL (PPM AS CL2) 
T'O'T~ R]I~E~R~ IDUA[ (PPM AS CL2) 
~ -Nq ~ tP2 
E )l~ E~ r O~S~ C~TE ~1 ~E*As PO4) , 

0 1 
0.2 

S~ q~S'SD~T 77.b 32 2 
S I DCAq~I:~I~ S~ ST02)" 26 
~mrRATEqyq:~rA~S~  

CDLR3R-(S~ ] ~sq ~U 
-- ~ 21JO 

r EM PERA~ F~ZTT-T 1 _-_-~  A~ Bq ANTIMONY (PPB 
~RE~1qTC- 7FF55" OD I o4 

2 D ] 39 
0 ~ 0 ZIZ~  ~-~  BA'R1U MTPFS"3 l IZZZ~_~ 

~------~YlJ ~/~T 

BERYLLIUM (PPB/ 
CA{]Iv]IX]$T TPPBT 

IF~Olqr~J P B > 
~--- -- -W 1J 

MANGANESE (PPB; ] F ---0~----2~ a-___d P;E~Cq3R77PT~ j t 
~3~  __ .~  C 

~]R C~I~ )
SI~~ E~ENIUM (PPB) t :~ZZ-5:f ---~-6 ~ ;:~ MTPPF~ N 
S 30T~M ( p p~r 1 -- 203 
~=HA LLIUM (PPB, qTff 0 
TOq~q~TR TR A~O~2~ETZ[~4~  ~S- ( P P B ) j -- 4D 151 

2 8 
T:~2:D~ ETRA~TE!- ~F~PB i -:Z::_- ~ O.D OO L" qL~3RT~FOqqf~ PE; 1 -- 37 123 

DO L~AR~  R[ORI1FE~ E2 1 ~  ~lr~ r oo 25 !~R]~ !FZZ)~IC'R]ZORrOME'Tf IA~ E 1 
I-ETRACI=IT 01~q9 ET$~ 1~t: ~W~B~ --  OO 

O 0 
-- -- --

( O 
qE TE R~ b3~qT~ ~ :7~'1" E- ~ TT'Fi~ m~3~  
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TABLE VIII 
C ARRO LLTO N O PERATIO N 

CHEM ICAL CO ST PER 
CHEM ICAL C HEM ICAL CO ST M ILLIO N GALLO NS 

_IME $778,142.23 $15.20 
=ERRIC COAGULANT $313,969.49 $6.13 
.3HLORINE $310,090.06 $6.o6 
3ODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE $125,082.55 $2.44 
:)OLYELECTROLYTE $249,072.55 $4.87 
:LUORIDE (100% ) $83,203.01 $1.63 
~,MMC)NIA $67,721.58 $1.32 
.3ARBON $3,010.82 $0.06 

"rOTAL CHEMICALS $1,930,292.30 $37.71 

Purification Plant O perating Cost: 
Total W ater TREATED 1999: 

$5,010,887.00 
51,193,860,000 G allons 

TO TAL CO ST 
PER M ILLIO N G ALLO NS 

TOTAL W ATER TREATED ~;OST PER 
YEAR M ILLIO N G ALLO NS O PERATING CO ST M ILLIO N G ALLO NS 

1999 46,302.82 $5,010,887.00 $108.22 
1998 46,987.48 $4,960,716.00 $105.58 
1997 "47,073.24 $4,634,048.89 $98.44 
1996 44,578.29 $4,389,820.00 $98.47 
;)95 41,503.75 $4,154,445.00 $100.10 

NOTE: O perating costs since 1996 include expenditures; Pension, FICA, 
FICA-M ED; which were charged to payroll related groups in previous years 
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TABLE IX 
ALGIERS OPERATION 

CHEM ICAL COST PER 
CHEM ICAL CHEM ICAL COST M ILLIO N GALLO NS 

LIME $124,369.67 $22.44 
FERRIC COAGULANT $63,816.24 $11.51 
CHLORIN[- $50,784.86 $9.16 
SODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE $15,561.57 $2.81 
POLYELFCT ROLYTE $46,649.81 $8.45 
FLUORIDE; (100% ) $8,929.06 $1.61 
AMMONIA $8,658.53 $1.60 
CARBON $952.41 $0.17 

TOTAL. CHEMICALS $320,122.15 $57.75 

Purification Plant O perating Cost: 
Total W ater "IFIEATED 1999: 

$1,373,072.00 
5,543,120,000 G allons 

TOTAL COST 
PER M ILLIO N GALLO NS 

TOTAL W ATER TREATED I
O PERATING CO ST 

i CO~'I PER ~  M LLION GALLONS 
MILLION GALLONS I 

[ "1999 [ 5,971.82 $1,373,072.00 I $229.93 
[ i998 r 4,402.11 $1,340,745.00 $304.57 
i 1997 I 4

,187.24 $1,094,971,56 I $261.50 
1996 4,217.43 $1,088,219.00 [ $258.03 
1995 I 4,187.88 $1,178,993.00 $281.53 

NOTE: O perating costs since 1996 include expenditures; Pension, FICA, 
FICA-M ed; whi('h were changed to payroll related groups in previous years 
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TABLE X 
SLUDG E REM OV ED FRO M THE "G " BASINS PRIM A RY TREATM ENT UNITS 

DO RR M O NO RAKE CO NVENTIO NAL SYSTEM 
1999 

ITotal M .G. W ater -I reated 
Total lons Dry Sludge Deposited in Basins Including Suspenc 
and D sso ved Solids Rem oved and Reacting Chem icals 

ITotal M G. W et Sludge W ithdrawn From Basins 
~verage Percent Solids in W et Sludge 
ITotal M.G. W ater Used in W ithdrawing Sludge 
}Percent of Total W ater Treated Used in W ithdrawing W et Slud 

TABLE X-A 
SLUDG E: REM OVED FRO M THE "L" BASINS PRIMARY TREATM ENT UNITS 

DO RR M O NO RAKE CO NVENTIO NAL SYSTEM  
1999 

[To~ T-~ ~G~TVater Treated 
Total Tons Dry Sludge Deposited in Basins Including Suspended 
and I-] sso ved Solids Rem oved and Reacting Chem ca s 28,014 

ITotai M.G. Wet Sludge Withdrawn From Basins [ 359.73 
~verage Percent Solids in Wet Sludge [ 1.83 
ITotal IVI,G. Water Used in Withdrawing Sludge I 356.93 
IPercent of Total Water Treated Used in Withdrawing Wet Sludge 2.11 
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TABLE XI 
1999 ANAt.YSIS DATA FO R NEW  O RLEANS DRINKING W ATER PURIFICATIO N SYSTEM 

M ISSISSIPPI RIVER -~ IN sPIED W A G ER--  
PARAMETER (Before Purification) (Aft er Purificat tion) 

MAX MIN I AVG MAX  ]---MIN AVG 
T~ %~Et~ qtql3"Y (PPM AS CaCO3) 172 84 132 13~ 10: 
3OTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) 221 118 175 -- 1~~ 15i 
NONCARBONATE HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) 70 15 I 44 5~ 
CALCIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) 152 83 119 13E 17! 
MAGNESIUM HARDNF SS (PPM AS CaC03) ---- 9d 14 56 ~  4" 
NEPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY (N.T.U.) 276 6 71.1 [~-- 0.0' 0.1" 
JACKSON TURBIDFrY (J.T.U.) 340 25 r lO7 r --  

8.55 7.34 I 7 99 9
_ _ ~3_

8 - 8.11 8.9z 
DHLORIDE (PPM) ---  5~ 23 ! 36 54 - 2! 3~ 
~I.UORIDE (PPM) 0.47 0.11 0.27 1.35 ~- 07! 1.0( 
rOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS (PPM) 

_~_ 350= 192 261 __~ 4Z _- 141 24~ 
[OTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPM) 214 46 I 111 
=REE CHLORINE R|'SIDUAL (PPM AS CL2) 0.43 r - ol 0.1; 
TOTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS CL2) 1 z-.. q 4.0~ F--- 10: 3.0E 
~,MMONIA (PPM AS N) "'- 7 0.60 [---- 0.0, o3~ 
3RTHO PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4) 0.27 I oJgt } 0.23 0.2~ 0.1( 0.2:, 
tOTAL PHOSPHATE (F'PM AS PO4) 048 1 0.281 I 0.39 0.56 O.2l 0.4;~ 
SLS_U_LFATE (PPM AS ~_O4) 502 L_- 29.1 37..~ SILICA (PPM AS Si02) 6

.5 5.2t 5A -- 4A 4.~ 
__ w NFI-RATE (PPM AS N) 2.84 3.09 0.6: 1.5~ 

NITRITE (PPM AS N) 0.03 o.ool 0.22 0.0( 0.02 
COLOR (Scale Units) 25 20 1( 
CONDUCTIVITY (umhos/cm) 537 27( 402 
TEMPERATURE (DEG. F.) 92 5[ 72.2 
ALUMINUM (PPB) ~x 48 ( 5.1 
ANTIMONY (PPB) tl&l 0 0.3 ( 0.16 
ARSENIC (PPB) 1.6 3.2 0.( 0.7 

n _ BARIUM (PPB) 40~ 62 3." 46 
BERYLLIUM (PPB) ~ 4 0.1 ( 0 
CADMIUM (PPB) h4 -- O.Ol 0,3 0.( 0.0 
CHROMIUM (PPB) 0.0 4.0 0I 0.53 
OOPPER (PPB) -- 6~1 ! 0.6 1 2~1 !]6 0.1 11.2 
IRON (PPB) 18 [ 2 
LEAD (PPB) Ha 1.2 ( o.1"7 
M-/~NGANESE (PPB) 12 0.~ 3.48 
MERCURY (PPB) 0.3 [ 0 
NICKEL (PPB) ! 0.6 I 2.1 3 0.; 1,3 
SELENIUM (PPB) I &~ q.8 2.2 0.~ 0.8 
SILVER (PPB) 0 I o 0 C O 
THALLIUM (PPB) : o 0 C 0 
-TINC (PPB) ' 0.0 39 0.C 4.2 
~OTASSlUM (PPM) 4.1 2.1 3.2 
SODIUM (PPM) --- - 55.5~ 55 13.E 27 
rOTAL TRIHALOME]HANES (PPB) uu F - o.oi 53.2 10.3 22.6 
TOTAL ORGANIC CARBON 

_(~  7f{ i 3.6 3.64 2.2 3.03 
, 2-DICHLOROETI-IANE (PPB) 2.3 0.C o.o~ 
CHLO RO FO RM 

_(PPB) u.u i ~ .0 ~ 0.0 429 6.9 16.0 
3ARBON TETRACHLORIDE (PPB) -3:51 -- - 0.0 0.1- 
~ROMODICHLOROMETHANE (PPB) (} {l 5.0 ~ 0 2.0 5.3 
[ETRACHLOROETHENE (PP B)_ t) II ' 0.0 o15~ 0.C 0.0 
3TX (Benzene, Toluene & Xylenes) (PPB) 0.8 0.C 0.5 
tOTAL COLIFORMS (colonies/100 ml) 4550 3 0 0 
-IETEROTROPHIC PLATE COUNT (co1./100 ml) " 18001 6700~ ~ 0 -- - 0 3.8 
I::ECAL COLIFORMS (colonies/100 ml) 1100 ! o 0 0 
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TA BLE" Xll 
EXTRACTS FRO M TA BLES IV-C A ND V 
20 Year Period, 1980 to t999 Inclusive 

M axim um , M inim um , and Average A m ount of 
W ater Treated Per Day 

(M.G. per 24 Hours) 

CA RRO LLTO N A LG IERS 

-~'EA-R } MAX. } MIN. I- AVG.~}I MAX. I M~N. I AVG. 
980 166.80 118.30 [ 137.f0- I 13.50 I -- 8.d0 I -- T~  
981 164.50 121.70 I 140.50 13.00 -- 8.13 lO~ 1 
982 216.40 118.30 133.80 I 15.68 I -- 9.25 I -11.07 
983 231.70 107.60 [ 128.30 I 15.00 I 8.50 [ 11.02 
984 166.71 113,08 130 15.42 I ---9,50 I -- -11.5-7 
985 210.04 99.75 124.08 I 14.96 I-- --8~  I -- lO~ 9 
986 175.77 89.12 121 ~n lq 71 I 8.04 [ 10.29 
987 137.63 95.08 I 116.42 13.46 7.45 10.42 
988 146.38 94.71 I 118,3R 1371 I 8.34 I 10.19 
989 240.00 93.83 1 119.54 I 18175 -- 7.00 
990 162.50 100.46 I 119.61 14 7R -8~ 5 F-- 1o~  
991 133.29 98.92 114.79 I 12.50 [ 8.00 i 9.60 
992 139.00 97.00 I 115.22 I 13.88 I --&~  I 9.88 
993 140.38 103.25 [ 117,41 I 15 42 I 7.62 
994 128.88 103.88 113.71 I 17 ON I-- -8 .061 
995 142.83 104.67 121,4{~ I 1~ 14 I 9.00 t 1 1155 
996 198.42 91.59 128.97 I 18.27 I ck00 I 1 1A2 

156.53 112.70 I 128.73 I 18.83 } -9.58 I -- 12.O6 
998 152.96 98.48 126.86 J 22.96 I q2.00 ] ~ 6~-6 
~99 168.25 122.55 I 140.26 22,00 I-- -8.9~  I ~ 15.19 
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TABLE XIII 
Monthly Temperature (Degrees Farenheit) of the 
M ississippi River W ater at the Carrollton Plant 

i qVfONTFF -- T990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1998 1999 
JANUARY 40 40 39 37 35 40 45 64 45 
~FEBRUARY 46 41 41 38, 36 3B 48 50 50 
MARCH 51 47 47 38 42 43 52 52 50 
APRIL 55 56 52 48 53 55 57 61 60 
MAY 65 65 63 60 62 62 68 70 67 
JUNE 72 75 72 71 71 77 76 80 77 
JULY 79 79 78 76 77 82 83 85 82 
AUGUST 80 80 77 76 77 85 83 85 87 
SEPTEM BER 80 78 74 75 76 84 82 83 83 
OCTOBER 69 67 64 62 66 73 72 76 74 
NOVEM BER 57 53 54 51 57 60 62 65 66 
DECEM BER 50 45 41 41 46 50 51 57 56 
M A.X IM UM B5 B7 89 
M INIM UM 36 47 42 
AVERAGE 62 68 66 

Ten-Year Period 

M axim um 90 
M inim um 32 
Average 62 
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TA BLE" XlV 

Monthly Tem perature (Degrees Farenheit) 
Tap W ater at the Carrollton Plant 

1997 
Janua~ 65 67 64 64 I 65 
IFebrua~ 64 64 61 I 66 I 66 
March 67 65 69 68 I -~3 
April 71 74 70 I 73 7O 
May 75 78 75 7~ ~ -7-7 
June 76 77 79 I 82 80 
July 78 80 82 I 83 82 
August 81 81 86 I 84 F -8~  
September 81 81 83 81 ~ 3 
O ctober 77 77 79 I 8O 75 
November 70 72 72 I 72 

r  -- -- --  

December 66 66 65 I 63 
Maximum I 88 i 89 92 I 89 
Minimum I 44 , 54 53 I 56 
Average r 73 ! 74 74 [ 74 

Five-Year Period 

M axim um 92 
M inim um 44 
Average 74 
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ANNUAL REPORT - 1999 
W ATER TABULATIO N NO . 1 

W ATER LINES LA ID DURING 1999 
Q UANTITIES O F PIPE M EASURED IN FEET 

ITEM S BY CO NTRACT BY OTHERS TOTAL FEET TOTAL M ILES 
~" P.V.C. 0.0C 3,770.00 3.770.00 0 714 
~" P.V.C O.OO 0.00 O.OC 0 000 
~" P.V.('. 285.50 812.00 1,097.5C 0.208 
3" P V.(" 23,207.00 21.949.60 45,156.6C 8.552 
3" D.I 350.00 575.00 925.0C 0 171 
10" P,V C 0.00 0.00 O.OC 0.000 
10" IRON 0.00 0.00 0.0O 0.000 
F12" P .V C  5.018.00 1,592.00 6,610.00 1 252 
12" D,I 10.00 12.00 22.0C 0.004 
18" P.V C. 0.00 0.00 0.0C 0 000 
.~0" P.V C 0.00 0.00 0.0C 0.00( 
21" D.I. 0.0( 0.00 0.0C 0.000 
~ [ FEET 28,870.50 28,710.60 57,581.10 109' 
FIRE HYDRANTS 32 58 90 Total Fire Hyd rants in 1999 
#ALVEC,~ 36 , 115 151 Total Valves i[ ~1999 
VIANFIOLL: S 27 I 67 94 Total Manholes in 1999 

Total feet rem oved or abandoned 28.870 

W ATER VALVES AS O F 1999 

~.I_LED REMOVED IN 1999 TOTAL VAL VES [ 
999 REMAINING IN lq99 I 
51 39 24,159 ] 

FIRE HYDRANTS AS O F 1999 

W ATER MANHO LES AS O F 1999 

W ATER LINES IN SYSTEM AS OF 1999 
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ANNUAL REPORT - 1999 
W ATER TABULATION NO. 3 

LENGTH OF WATER MAINS OF EACH SIZE AND MATERIAL, NUMBER OF VALVES OF EACH SJ21~ 
BOTH GATE AND CHECK, ORIGINAt.LY INSTALLED, THE OUANTITIES REMOVED C)R 
ABANDONED, AND 3"HE QUANTITIES REMAINING IN THE DISTRIBUITON SYSTEM 

AT "filE ENO OF 1999 

Linear Feet Linear Feet Linear Fee S~ze Mater~l Existing Installed Removed Remainin~ 

54" 7,535.1( 7.53~ 
50= 06,464.9~ 88~48, 
48" 36r045.1C _  

36,o4.1 
48' 4,982.9~ 4,98; 

13~,59.3c 13,25~ 
11?170.E 

_  1~ 1~ 
42' 9r361.9~  
42' 41349,6c 

_  4,34J 
4.523.3~ _  4,5~. 

E  16r7612C __ 16,76_ 
37,374.7(] 37,37, 

_
)6' 675.0C 
3o--  60,840J(~ 60,84I 

Prestressed Concrete 36,554.40 __  36.65'. 
3.910.6(] 391! 

30" 35.0~ -- 3i 
19,60220 19,60; 

)0' 72r724~  
--  72,72! 

}0' 1 ~403 16 1 48,'. 
74" R C.P Pi~e 102.50 -- lO~ 

Concrete P3~--  
4,062.50 4.06; 

Cast Iron F~_ 30,48020 3048( 
PVC P~ _ 8.00 
Cast Iron P~:~ 102.345.60 

to,. Asb estos Cemenl 12,668.00 12,681 
tO" Co ncrete P I~  10,755.80 --  

18,75.' 
tO' Du ~ile Iron P~-)e= 1 A83.40 1.48." 
?0" Prestressed Concrele 21250 
18" R C.P P~  970.50 97( 
IG" Cast tror~ P~ . 1E,874,~0 
16" Concrele PIPe 5,661.60 

__ - 
5,681 

16" Ductile Iron P=~  3212"30 ,_  32~; 
P V.C P~  6,47550 6 47E 

IG" AS~)BS~ os Cement 66,34420 66,34~ 
15" R C P P~  1,069 "30 _  

1,06~ 
12' Cas~ Jron P]~~_  691,036.80 2,250.00 888,78~ 

Stee ~  1,272.90 1,27,~ 
12" Asb eslos Cement 367,671.60 2'87 .CO 367.584 
i2" Ductile Iron~  4,656 30 2250.00 6 90~ 

87~961.30 ~ 6,604.9~ 94.56E 
~6" Cast Iron P~__ _  10,35620 10,35E 
L0~ Du ctde Iron P~ L 61000 61~ 

Asbestos Cement 12,76360 12,763 
,0" Plasb c Pipe 153.90 
10" PVC P~e 3,534 CO __  

3,534 

r Plastl~  231,028,80 231,02tj 
Cast Iron P=~  144 ,893.30 151.0( 144,832 

r Asbestos Cemen~ _723,486 40 s ,82~  .~ 717,065 
r Ductile Iron ~  5~13 10 9250( 6,t38 
r PV C Pipe 69,116 40 45,1566~ 114272 

PV C Pipe 1,007.9~ 15,852 
7 CaSt Iron Pipe 646,557 40 10,934 5C 2,835,632 

t~sb esl os Cement 115~515 70 1.115,515 
=. Plastic Pipe 121,385 50 121,365 

buc(]le Iron P~  11,938 10 11.938 
712 

229.4437( 13,854.5C 1215~  
t*.sb est os Cemenl 29,4553( 4,690 OC 24.765 

3237 1( 3237 
3,3196( 3,319 

_
3,361 7( 3,361 

I 20.592 1( 
_  20,502 

6,820 O( 9 ,820 
3.770.00 4,092 

53466( 5,345 
Lineal Feel ][ola~ 59.803 1(] 37,59800 8,791,714 
ro~al i ~lles 1,660 8~ 11 33 7.12 1,865 
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Sste Existing Installed 

! Remainin~ 48 C ( 42 6 36" 24 2~ 30" 6( 6 6 !! 0 1915 --E 6 2
,516 2,653 
7 ,879 7,87~ 
72.13 721~ 

14 

TOTALS 19,637 ""~ 5 18 76E 



 

ANNUAL REPO RT - 1999 

SEW ER TABULATIO N NO , 1 

SEW ER LINES LAID DURING 1999 

QUANTITIES OF PIPE M EASURED IN FEET 

ITEM S BY CO NTRACT BY OTHERS TOTAL F:EET T )TAL M ILES 
S" P.V.C. 22,626.50 4,939.00 27,565,50 5.22 
B" P.V.C. 77,751.60 12,413.40 90,165.00 17.0~ 
B" D.I. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
10" P.VC . 265.60 0.00 265160 0,05 
12" P.V.C. 0.00 2,389.00 2,389 00 0.45 
15" P.V.C. 2,613.40 0.00 2,613.40 0.49 
18" P.V.C. 3,121.50 0.00 3,121.50 0.59 
21" P.V.C. 392.60 0.00 392,60 0.07 
4" P.V.C /S.F.M . 262.40 262.40 0,05 
36" P.V.C  
TOTALS 106,771.20 20,003.80 126,775.00 24.01 

148 Total Manholes Constructed M H 'S 13 135 
in 199 

SEW ER LINES LA ID IN 1999 

ORIGINAL 1 REMOVED & TOTAL 
TOTAL REMAINING (IN MILES) CONSTRUCTION REPLACED REMAINING 

( N F E f-T) (IN FEET) ( N FEET) 
151,932.601 [ 69,240.30 82,692.50~ ] 1 ..i.66 

SEW ER M ANHOLE PROJECTS FOR 1999 

TOTAL. M O DIFICATIO NS BUIL'I" IN 1999 REM OVED IN 1999 
IN 1999 

148 11 137 
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COST O F O PERATIONS IDENTIFICATION PROGRAM 

ADM IN ISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Insurance Cost per Employee : 

Workers' Compensation 
Auto Liability 
General Liability 

ENGINNEERING DEPARTMENT 

Cost to Design a Project 

ENV IROMENTAL DEPARTMENT 
Cost of Typical Industry 
Sampling Event 

FACILITY MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

Cost to set 5/8" water meter 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES DEPARTM ENT 

ACCOUNTING : 
Cost to Process a Miscellaneous Invoice 
Cost to process a Vendor Invoice 
Cost to p rocess a Paycheck 

IN FORMATION SYSTEMS : 
Cost to Image a Document 
Cost to Retrieve a Docum ent 

From the Imaging System 
Cost to Retrieve a Document 

From the Microfiche Files/Storage 

PERSONNEL : 
Cost to Hire an Employee 
Cost to complete a Voluntary 

Employee Termination 
Employee Turnover Rate 

Cost to Train an Employee 

$]41].00 
$ 630.00 
$ 126.00 

5 .8% 

of Project 
Cost 

$ 166 .95 

62 .80 

8 .26 
5 .45 
2 .86 

$ 0.27 

$ 3.06 

$ 26.78 

$ 425.34 

$ ]3.10 
]2 .23% 

$ 259.62 

PURCHA SING : 
Cost to Process a Sundry Purchase Order $ ]2.50 

IV-40 



REVENUE : 

Cost to Read a Meter 
Cost to Render a Bill 

(Less Meter Reading) 
Cost to Manage a Customer by Phone 
Cost to Manage a Customer by Mail 
Cost to Manage a Walk-in Customer 
Cost to Process a Mail-in Payment 
Cost to Process a Walk-in Payment 

SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Average Annual Maintenance Cost 
per Piece of Equipment 

Ave~age Percent of Fleet Down for 1999 

IV-41 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

0 .38 

0 .49 
2 ,33 
1 ,15 
7 ,24 
0 .37 
1 ,83 

$ 579.00 
10% 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

B ru n o 

Tervalon 

REPORT ON CO M PLIANCE AND O N INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING BASED O N AN AUDIT O F GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

PERFORM ED IN ACCO RDANCE W ITH GOVERNM ENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

To the M e.rnbers of the Board 
Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statem ents of the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans 
(the Board) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 21, 
2000. W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 

Com~jyrtc~ 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board's general purpose financial statements are 
free of m aterial misstatement, we perform ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and m aterial eftect on the determ ination of 
general purpose financial statement am ounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. However, we noted certain im material instances of noncompliance that we have reported to 
m anagement of the Board in a separate letter dated April 21, 2000. 

Internal Control O ver Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Board's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to detel~nine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purp ose 
financial statem ents and not to provide assurance on the intern al control over financial reporting. Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition 
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control colnponeuts does not reduce to a 
relatively low level the risk that m isstatements in am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to the general 
purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees 
in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control 
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. However, we noted other 
m atters involving the intern al control over financial reporting that we have leported to managem ent of the 
Board in a separate letter dated April 21, 2000. 

lllll 



This report is intended solely for the inform ation of the Board, the Board's m anagement and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

April 21,200(I 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 70139~3599 

B runo 

,&' Tervalon 

REI'ORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITIt REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO THE M AJOR 
PRO GRAM , INTERNAL CO NTRO L OVER CO M PLIANCE IN ACCO RDANCE W ITH OM B 
CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE S OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

To the M embers of the Board 
Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans 

Com~lia[~~ 

W e have andited the compliance of the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans (the Board) with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the U, S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Complim~ce Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999. 
The Board's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the Board's 
m anagem ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Board's com pliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and OM B Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizo~'ions. Those standards and OM B Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above tha! could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the Board's compliance with those requirements and perform ing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determ ination on the Board's compliance 
w ith those requirem ents. 

In our opinion, the Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirement.,; referred to above that are 
applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

Intern al Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Board is responsible for establishing and m aintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal program s. In 
planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Board's intern al control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determ ine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our Olfinion on compliance and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with OM B Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the intern al control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all m ailers in the 
intem al control that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or 

IIIII 



ScheduJ~Lo_fj~.x.penditures of Federal Awards 

W e have attdited the financial statements of the Board as of and for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999, and 
have issued our report thereon dated April 21, 2000. Our audit was perfonned fi~r the purpose of form ing an 
opinic, n on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OM B Circ.ular A-133, Audits of States 
and Local Governrnents and Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board, the Board's management and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

April 21,2000 



SEW ERA G E AND W ATER BO ARD O F NEW  O RLEANS 
N ew O rleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal G rantor/Prol~ram  Title 

United Slates Environmental Protection Agency - 
Special purpose: 
G rant #1 
Grant #2 
G rant #3 

Total Federal Awards 

CFDA 
Num ber 

_
Exp enditures 

66.606 $ 6,224,995 
66.606 4,901,487 
66.606 811.072 

See accom panying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A wards. 

$ 11,937,554 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  O RLEANS 
New O rleans, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31. 1999 

(1) G~neral 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of the federal 
awards of the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans (the Board). The Board's reporting entity 
is defined in note I to the financial statem ents for the year ended December 31, 1999. All federal 
awards received from federal agencies is included on the schedule. 

(2) Ba:~is of Accounting 

The accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is described in note 1 to the Board's financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 1999. 

(3) Relationship to Financial Statem ents 

Federal awards are included in contributed capital in the financial statements 



SEW ERAGE AND W ATER BOARD OF NEW  
O RLEANS N

ew O rleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31
, 1999 

(I) SummaLv o
_f. Audilors' Results 

(a) The type of report issued on the financial st
atem ents: 

.unqualifie_0 o qt2~ion 
(b) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the General Purpose Financial Statements: 

..n.one re.p__o__ned:~ .~A M at~,~rial weaknesses: n
._o. 

(c) Noncompliance which is material to th
e financial statem ents: n

__ _q 
(d) R~;portable conditions in internal c

ontrol Over major programs: none ~  M aterial weaknesses: no -__ _  

(e) The type of report issued on compli
ance for major programs: unqualifieddp~inio~n 

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Sectio
n 510(a) of OM B Circular A- 133: !Lo 

(g) M ajor program: 

United States Environm ental P
rotection Agency - S

pecial Purpose (CFDA number 66
.606) 

(h) l--)ollat threshold used to distinguish b
etween Type A and Type B program s

: ~3~ __~  
(i) Auditee qualified as a low -risk auditee under Section 530 

of OM B Circular A-133: 
(2) Findings Relating to the General Pu

rp ose Financial Stalem ents Reported in ACcordance with Government Auditing Standards: Non_e 
(3) Findix gs and Questioned Costs relating to Federal A wards: Non~  





April 21, 2000 

Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 701393599 

Board of l)irectors 
Sewerage & W ater Board of New Orleans 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

,. R.=C ~ ~ ----~I0 
2000JUL -5 A~;II

: 3G 

Ladies and G entlem en: 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage & W ater Board of New Orleans 
(the Board), for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 21, 2000. 

]n planning and perform ing our audit of the general purp ose financial statem ents of the Board, we considered 
intern al control in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purp ose of expressing our opinion on 
the general purp ose financial statem ents. An audit does not include exam ining the effectiveness of intern al 
control and does not provide assurance on internal control. W e have not considered internal control since the 

date of our report. 

During our audit we noted certain m atters involving intern al control and other operational m atters that are 
presented for your consideration. These comments and recomm endations, all of which have been discussed 
with the appropriate m embers of m anagem ent, are intended to improve internal control or result in other 
operating efficiencies and are summ arizezl in Appendix A . Appendix B provides the status of prior year 
com m ents. Appendix C provides m anagem ent's response to current year com m ents. 

Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statem ents, and therefore m ay not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist. W e 
aim , however, to use our knowledge of the com pany's organization gained during our work to m ake 
comments emd suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. 

W e would be/)leased to discuss these com m ents and recomm endations with yon al any lim e. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, the Board's management, and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and the office of the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor within the organiza tion and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 



Account A nalysis 

Current Year Com m ents 

Appendix A 

During the course of the audit, we noted that analyses of the balance sheet aecouuts were not consistently 
prepared throughout the year. The accounting staff worked diligently to ensun~ that all analysis were 
prepared as of year-end. W e encourage that all balan ce sheet accounts be analyzed monthly. These analyses 
should be retained and reviewed by a supervisor as pan of the m onthly closir.g cycle. These analysis assist 
with understanding the details of the account and help to identify potential errors. 

Preparation of Cash Reconciliations 

The Board m anually records the cash transactions to the general ledger. Because the process is m anual, 
reconciliations are time consuming and not perform ed on a regular basis. As a resuh, the staff incurred 
significant tim e reconciling the account for the N ovem ber close in preparation for the bond sale. 
Reconciliations between the bank statem ents and the general ledger should be performed m onthly. The 

reconciliations should be reviewed by management or designee an d adjusting journal entries should be made 
tim ely. 

G rant Inforrnation 

As a result of a change in the accounting personnel overseeing grant reim bursement, accounting personnel 
had a difficult time locating documents (invoices) to support purchases made with grant revenue. However, 
all requested documents were eventually provided to us. Grant docum entation should be maintained in a 
central file and retained for a specific period. M aintenance of documentation will provide comprehensive 
support fen all acquisitions. 

Audit Adjustments 

Currently, several accruals, including workers' compensation, legal claim s an d health insurance, are not 
recorded to the Board's accounting system until the year-end audit. The accounting system should provide 
an ongoing accounting record of transactions to support the financial status of the Board. Timely recording of 
accruals and estimated am ounts will provide m anagem ent with m ore accurate information as interim 
financial reports are prepared. 



PRIO R YEAR COM M ENTS 

Financial Statem ent Account Reconciliations 

A ppendix B 

During our audit we noted financial statement accounts that were not reviewed or reconciled on a tim ely 
basis dux'ing the year. These accounts included cash and accounts payables. To ensure accurate financial 
inform ation on a tim ely basis during the year and at year-end, we recomm end: 

~ reconciliation of all balance sheet accounts to supporting documentation on a m onthly basis 

~ review of reconciliations and account balances by supervisors on a tim ely basis, and 

~ docum ented analytical reviews of all account balances on a quarterly basis 

The recommendations should be considered by management and may require additional training and efforts 
of the staff. However, these or sim ilar changes would provide the Board and m anagement with m ore 
accurate interim as well as year-end data. 

M anagem ent's Response and Status 

The Board is im plementing additional automation to replace m anual accounting practices as it relates to cash. 
The Board's Com puter Center and Finance staff have team ed up to complete the aulom ation and issuance of 
interim fin;m cial statem ents. Additionally, the Board is providing ongoing training to Finance Department 
em ployees. 

EPA G rant 

The Board has established an anticipated long-term relationship resulting in receipt of funding from the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). As part of the requirements in receiving such funds, the Board is 
subject to EPA and other regulations. A portion of these regulations requires the Board to submit an EPA 
Form 5700-52A, "M BE/W BE Utilization Under Federal Grants/Cooperative Agreements and Other Federal 
Financial Assislance," report to the EPA award official within thirty (30) days after the end of each Federal 
Fiscal Year quarter. 

The Board did not subm it these reports within the required tim e frame. W e recom mend that the Board 
develop a process to com ply with the above. 

M anagem ent's Response and Status 

The Board has assigned appropriate employees to ensure that reports are subnfitted timely. The Econom ic 
Disadvanta,?ed Business Program prepares the report, and the departm ent head will review the reports and 
follow-up on a tim ely subm ission. 



Inventory 

Appendix B. cont 

During the audit, it came to our attention that inventory at Central Yard location was misappropriated during 
the year. ']'he m isappropriation occurred prim arily due to collusion of employees. W hile we recognize that 
employee circum vention of controls can occur, we recomm end that the Boald re-evaluate their system of 
internal control and regularly m onitor the effectiveness of such controls to ensm-e that the Board's assets are 
appropriately safeguarded. 

M anagem ent's Response and Status 

The Board has instituted a policy to ensure inventory at its Central Yar d site is adequately safeguarded 

Reporting M odel Changes 

After years of study and consideration of the needs of users of govern m ent financial statements, the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued  its revolutionary new reporting model in June 
1999. The new m odel dram atically changes the presentation of governments" extern al financial statements. 

In the GASB's view, the objective of the new model is to enhance the clarity an d usefulness of government 
financial statements to the citizenry , oversight bodies, investors an d cred itors. It will substantially affect the 
Board's financial data accumulation and financial statement presentation processes. Som e of the key aspects 
of the changes follow: 

M anag~ment's Discussion and Analysis (M D&A) - A comprehensive M D&A will now be included as 
required supplementary information. The M D&A will introduce the financial statements by presenting 
an analysis of the governm ent's financial perform ance for the year and its financial position at year-end. 
The M I)& A w ill be in addition to the transm ittal letter currently required for G overnm ent Finance 

Officers Association (GFOA) award candidates, such as your Board, but we expect that the GFOA will 
make changes in their requirements so as to avoid any duplication between the two documents. 

Statement of Activities - Governments will now be required to use a "net program cost" format for the 
entity-wide statements instead of a traditional operating statement. This new format groups revenues and 
expenses by functional categories (such as public safety, public works, etc,). The purpose of the new 
statem ent is to inform readers about the cost of specific functions and the extent to which they are 
financed with program revenues or general revenues of the govern ment (such as tax revenues). 
Goverm nents will have the option of reporting both direct and indirect program costs. 

Capital Contributions - Capital contributions to enterprise funds would be reported as nonoperaling 

revenues (rather than direct additions to equity); govern ments would no longer report contributed capital 
equity accounts. This change would recognize all contributed resources-including grants, tap fees, and 
developer contributions consistently in enterp rise fund operating statements. It also would elim inate the 
confusion caused by reporting negative retained earnings (offset) by large contributed capital balances. 



A ppendix B. cont 

The effectiw: date of the new pronouncement will require implementation by the Board for its year ending 
December 31, 2001. The magnitude of these changes and the time required to prepare for implementation 
should not be underestim ated. W e recomm end that the Board begin to look at its system s and processes to 
ensure thal the required inform ation will be available to ensure tim ely im plem entation. W e recom mend that 
the Board consider the cost of required  changes to its system s and processes to ensure availability of 
necessary, funds in its upcoming budget and also consider identifying training program s for key staff 
members to attend. 

M anagem ent's Response and Status 

The Board has considered the impact of the new reporting model m~d is continuing to identify 
courses/training for key personnel to enhance the knowledge and preparation fi~r new GASB reporting 
standards. 

The Board uses an AM S package for its automated financial system. Information Systems (IS) is aware of 
the GASB changes and believes that AM S is preparing appropriate software m odifications. At this time, IS 
anticipates a six to nine month effort to implement the new AM S software with work completed by the 
Decem ber 2001 deadline. 

Year 2000 

As part of our audit, limited inquiries and documentation reviews were made in connection with Year 2000 
issues. Suc.h procedures were nnt intended to, and do not, provide any assurance thai: Year 2000 issues which 
m ay exist have been identified, on the adequacy of the Board's remediation plans related to Year 2000 
financial or operalional problem s, or on whether the Board is or will becom e Year 2000 com pliant. 
Identified corrtments are listed as follows: 

The Board has not adequately docum ented its Year 2000 contingency plan. The lack of a form al, 
docum ented contingency plan leaves the Board at risk of discontinuity of operations in the event of 
problem s associated with the Year 2000. 

The Board should immediately develop and adopt a form al Year 2000 contingency plan. The 
contingency plan should be aimed to provide alternate resources or direction for all of the Board 
departments. The contingency plan would allow the Board to continue operations deemed critical to 
the Board in the event that Year 2000 problem s arise. 

The: Board should develop a documented test planning process for its Year 2000 effort
. The 

docum ented process would allow the Board to ensure that all testing associated  with the Year 2000 is 
conducted appropriately. 



M anagem ent's Response and Status 

Appendix B. cont 

The Year 2000 remediation undertaken by Inform ation System s was highly successful, capping a four year 
effort by the staff. No significant Year 2000 related errors occurred on any mainframe hardware or 
application program s, including custom er, financial, and bum an  resources system s. 

No significan l Year 2000 related errors oc curred on any LAN network hardware or application systems, with 
one exception. The OCOA did experience a corruption of data which had been m an ually entered between 
September 1999 and Decem ber 1999. The application system program s have been corrected and all lost data 
re-entered. The OCOA system is used to m onitor payments to a single contractor. The system was originally 
scheduled to be discontinued in 1999. 



A ccount A nalysis 

M anagem ent's Response to Current Year Com m cnLs 

Appendix C 

During the course of the audit, we noted that analyses of the balance sheet accounts were not consistently 
prepared throughout the year. The accounting staff worked diligently to ensure that all analysis were 
prepared as of year-end. W e encourage that all balance sheet accounts be an alyzed m onthly. These analyses 
should be retained and reviewed by a supervisor as part of the m onthly closing cycle. These analysis assist 
with understanding the details of the account and help to identify potential errors. 

M anagem ent's Response 

Procedures have been devised to assure that balance sheet accounts will be reconciled in a timely m anner 

Preparation of Cash Reconciliations 

The Board m anually records the cash transactions to tile general ledger. Because the process is manual, 
reconciliations are tim e consum ing and not perform ed on a regular basis. A s a result, the staff incurred 
significant tim e reconciling the account for the Novem ber close in preparation for the bond sale. 
Reconciliations between the bank statements and the general ledger should be performed monthly. The 
reconciliations should be reviewed by management or design ee and adjusting journal entries should be made 
tim ely. 

M anagem ent's Response 

The Board is in the process of further autom ating the financial system  to include cash receipts to expedite the 
reconciliation process. 

G rant Inform ation 

A s a result of a change in the personnel overseeing grant processing, accounting personnel had a difficult 
time locating documents (invoices) to support purchases made with grant revenue. However, all requested 
documents welt eventually provided to us. Grant documentation should be m aintained in a central file and 
retained for a specific period. M aintenance of documentation will provide comprehensive support for all 
acquisitions 

M anagem ent's Res ponse 

All Grant reimbursement documents (invoices, public vouchers and purchase orders) are filed in a central 
location. Further measures have been taken to assure that grant docum ents shall be filed back into its proper 
location timely when rem oved from the file. 



Audit Adjustments 
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Currently, several accruals, including workers' compensation, legal claim s arud health insurance, are not 
recorded to the Board's accounting system until the year-end audit. The accounting system should provide 
an ongoing accounting record of transactions to support the financial status of the Board. Tim ely recording of 
accruals an d estim ated am ounts will provide m anagem ent with m ore accurate inform ation as internal 
financial reports are prepared. 

M anagem ent's Response 

In the preparation of interim financial statements the accrn als, including workers' compensation, legal claim s 
and health insurance, will be recorded timely to present the current financial position of the Board. 


